
HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD
HAVANT
HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX

Telephone: 023 9247 4174
Fax: 023 9248 0263
Website: www.havant.gov.uk

COUNCIL AGENDA

Membership:      Councillor Patrick (Mayor)

Councillors Jenner, Inkster, Patel, Thain-Smith, Robinson, Bains, P Bains (Deputy 
Mayor), Bowerman, Briggs, Branson, Carpenter, Crellin, Davis, Francis, Guest, Hart, 
Howard, Hughes, Keast, Kennett, Lowe, Lloyd, Milne, Pike, Raines, Rennie, 
Robinson, Satchwell, Sceal, Scott, Mrs Shimbart, Smith K, Thomas, Turner, Wade, 
Weeks and Wilson

Meeting: Council

Date: Wednesday 13 November 2019

Time: 5.00 pm

Venue: Hurstwood Room, Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road, 
Havant, Hampshire PO9 2AX

The business to be transacted is set out below: 

David Brown
Monitoring Officer

5 November 2019

Contact Officer: James Harris 01730 234098
Email:  DemocraticServices@havant.gov.uk

Page
PART 1 (Items open for public attendance)

1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Declarations of Interests  

To receive any declarations of interests from Members.

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


ii

3 Minutes  

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting held on 25 September 
2019.

1 - 8

4 Mayor's Report  9 - 10

5 Appointments  

Council to note the following casual changes to appointments agreed 
by the Leader since the last meeting of the Council:

(1) Licensing Committee – Councillor Weeks appointed to the 
vacant Conservative seat;

(2) Five Councils Corporate Services Joint Committee – Councillor 
Briggs appointed to the vacant seat;

(3) Governance, Audit & Finance Board – Councillor Briggs to 
replace Councillor Kennett as both a board member and 
Chairman; and

(4) Cllr Thomas appointed as a Standing Deputy for the 
Development Management Committee.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

6 Public Questions under Standing Order 13.4(f)  

To receive questions from, and provide answers to, the public, 
provided they have been submitted in accordance with the 
requirements of Standing Order 13.4(f).

7 Cabinet/Board/Committee Recommendations  

To consider the following recommendations to Council:

(A) Cabinet 23 October 2019

Polling Review 2019 of Havant

The agenda and reports for this meeting can be viewed via the 
following link: 

http://havant.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=
10859

RECOMMENDED to full Council that the following changes to Polling 
Districts, Polling places and Polling stations within Havant are agreed: 

(i) Emsworth – Havant Road – No’s 1 – 19, 33 – 41 odds, 12 – 
16, and 30 evens – move from EC to EE;

(ii) Emsworth – Convent Lane – No’s 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 10 and 12 – 
move from EC to EE;

http://havant.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=10859
http://havant.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=10859


iii

(iii) Emsworth – Hollybank Lane – move all properties to EB;

(iv) All other Polling districts and Polling places will remain the 
same as 2019 elections, please see appendix A, for a full list of 
polling stations.

8 Note the approach and Timetable for the Constitutional Review  11 - 36

9 Appointment of the S151 Officer  37 - 38

10 Leader's Report  39 - 42

11 Cabinet Lead Reports  43 - 66

12 Cabinet Leads and Chairmen's Question Time  

(i) the Leader and Cabinet Leads to answer questions on 
matters within their respective reports.

(ii) Chairmen to answer questions on minutes since the last 
Council meeting.

13 Questions Under Standing Order 23  

To receive questions from Councillors in accordance with the 
requirements of Standing Order 23.4(a).

14 Urgent Questions Under Standing Order 23  

To receive urgent questions from Councillors submitted in 
accordance with the requirements of Standing Order 23.4(b).

15 Acceptance of Minutes  

The Council to receive the minutes of Committees held since the last 
meeting of the Council:

Joint Human Resources Committee – 18 September 2019

Governance, Audit and Finance Board – 18 September 2019

Development Management Committee – 10 October 2019

Cabinet – 23 October 2019



iv

 GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 023 9244 6231
Internet

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant 
Borough Council website: www.havant.gov.uk

Public Attendance and Participation

Members of the public are welcome to attend the Public Service Plaza and 
observe the meetings. Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to 
make deputations on matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this 
procedure and for further information please get in touch with the contact 
officer for this agenda. 

Disabled Access

The Public Service Plaza has full access and facilities for the disabled.

Emergency Procedure

Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound.

PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.

DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO

No Smoking Policy

The Public Service Plaza operates a strict No Smoking policy in all of its 
offices, corridors, meeting rooms and toilets. 

Parking

Pay and display car parking is available in the Leisure Centre car park 
opposite the Plaza.

http://www.havant.gov.uk/


v

Public 
Service 
Plaza



vi

PROTOCOL AT COUNCIL MEETING – AT A GLANCE

Sit or Stand?

Stand to address the Council/Mayor at all times

Rules of Debate

 always address each other as “Councillor …”
 a motion or amendment has to be proposed and seconded
 once an amendment has been proposed and seconded, it becomes the subject 

of the debate until it is either accepted or rejected by a vote
 a seconder can choose to make their speech at a later time
 only one Councillor to stand at any one time
 speeches will not exceed 5 minutes (the Council can resolve to allow additional 

time, which will not exceed a further 3 minutes)
 a Councillor proposing the adoption of a Committee/Board minute has sufficient 

time to propose and unlimited time to reply to debate
 a Councillor can only speak again on an amendment, to move a further 

amendment, on a point of order or personal explanation.

Questions and Motions

 Motions must be submitted in writing (or by email) to the Democratic Services 
Team Leader 6 working days prior to the Council meeting

 Councillors may ask questions, without notice, of the Leader and Cabinet 
Leads in respect of the Cabinet Lead reports submitted to Council

 Councillors may ask questions of the Leader, Cabinet Leads and Committee 
Chairmen, on any matter affect the Borough or its residents, providing that:

o 48 hours written notice is given; or
o 2 hours written notice in relation to urgent matters

Voting

 Voting may be by a show of hands or by a ballot at the discretion of the Mayor
 Two Councillors may request, before a vote is taken, that the names of those 

voting be recorded in the minutes
 A recorded vote will always be taken in respect of approval of the Annual 

Budget
 Councillors may not vote unless they are in the meeting for the full debate on 

any particular item
 A Councillor may request that his/her vote be recorded in the minutes



1
 COUNCIL

25 September 2019

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

At a meeting of the Council held on 25 September 2019

Present 

Councillor Patrick (Mayor)

Councillors Bains, Briggs, Crellin, Davis, Francis, Guest, Hart, Howard, Hughes, Jenner, Keast, 
Kennett, Lowe, Lloyd, Pike, Raines, Rennie, Robinson, Robinson, Satchwell, Scott, Thain-Smith, 
Thomas, Wade, Weeks and Wilson

14 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P Bains, Bowerman, Branson, 
Carpenter, Inkster, Milne, Sceal, Shimbart, Smith and Turner.

15 Declarations of Interests 

There were no declarations of interest.

16 Minutes 

Proposed by Councillor Wade and seconded by Councillor Thomas, it was 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 10 July 2019 be 
approved as a correct record.

17 Mayor's Report 

There were no questions for the Mayor on her published report.

18 Public Questions under Standing Order 13.4(f) 

There were no public questions.

19 Cabinet/Board/Committee Recommendations 

(A) Old Bedhampton Conservation Area Appraisal

Councillor Pike presented a recommendation from Cabinet seeking approval of the 
Old Bedhampton Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan 
following its consideration by the Cabinet on 11 September 2019.

The Mayor then invited Mr Ron Tate to make a deputation to the Council.  The text of 
Mr Tate’s deputation is published on the Council’s website alongside these minutes.

Proposed by Councillor Pike and seconded by Councillor Wilson, it was



2
 COUNCIL

25 September 2019

RESOLVED that the Council:

(a) Notes the responses to the recent consultation (included at Appendix 3 
(summary) and Appendix 4 (redacted copies of original responses));

(b) Adopts the Old Bedhampton Conservation Area Character Appraisal (Appendix 
1), including a boundary which includes that area set out on pages 133 and 141 
of the Cabinet agenda and a separate section to cover the Manor Farm Buildings 
located to the south of Lower Road;

(c) Notes that on adoption, the Old Bedhampton Conservation Area Character 
Appraisal (Appendix 1) becomes a material consideration in development 
management decision making alongside the development plan and emerging 
Havant Borough Local Plan 2036;

(d) Delegates authority to the Conservation Officer, in consultation with the Cabinet 
Lead for Planning and Regeneration and Communities, to make any resulting 
amendments following the Cabinet and Council meetings to the Old Bedhampton 
Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan (Appendix 1), including the 
boundary (Appendix 2)

(e) Approves the implementation of an Article 4 (1) Direction and delegates authority 
to the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Cabinet Lead for Planning, 
Regeneration and Communities, to determine the draft form and content of the 
direction prior to this being publicised. (See sections 3.67-3.79 of the report). 
Officers to report back to Cabinet at a later date with the draft form and content.

(f) Delegates authority to the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Cabinet 
Lead for Planning, Regeneration and Communities, to make any necessary 
amendments to the documents listed above. These shall be limited to 
grammatical, typographical, formatting and graphic design changes and shall not 
change the meaning of the material.

(B) Parking Supplementary Planning Document:  Targeted Review Regarding 
Parking Associated with New Development in Havant and Waterlooville Town 
Centres

Councillor Pike presented a recommendation from the Cabinet meeting held on 11 
September 2019 seeking approval of the draft Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD) on parking associated with new development in Havant and Waterlooville 
Town Centres.

Proposed by Councillor Pike and seconded by Councillor Wilson, it was

RESOLVED that the Council



3
 COUNCIL

25 September 2019

(1) notes the responses received to the recent consultation on the Parking 
Supplementary Planning Document (Appendix A);

(2) notes the need for a wider review of the Parking Supplementary Planning 
Document following the Examination of the Havant Borough Local Plan 2036;

(3) adopts the Parking Supplementary Planning Document (at appendix C), subject 
to the additional wording to paragraph 3.05 of the SPD so as to read:

“ The level of parking to be provided must be based on the nature and scale of 
the development, its target market in terms of demographics and professions, 
access to shops and services together with public transport accessibility.” ; and

(4) delegates authority to the Planning Policy Manager, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Lead for Planning, Regeneration and Communities, to make any 
necessary amendments to the documents listed above. These shall be limited to 
the inclusion of a contents page and page numbers, factual updates, correction 
of minor errors, typographical errors and other minor changes that do not change 
the meaning of the material. 

20 Leader's Report 

There were no matters the Leader wished to add to his published report.

21 Cabinet Lead Reports 

There were no matters the Cabinet Leads wished to add to their published reports.

22 Cabinet Leads and Chairmen's Question Time 

The Cabinet Leads took questions from Councillors on matters within their published 
reports.  There were no questions for the Committee Chairmen.

23 Questions Under Standing Order 23 

Questions received under Standing Order 23 and their related responses are set out below:

Question 1 from Councillor Davis to Councillor Wilson

With Reference to Nitrate Neutrality... If the UK leaves the EU on 31st October...Will this 
Council and Builders in the Borough still be bound by the Dutch Court Ruling on Nitrate 
Neutrality?

Response: The need to undertake Habitats Regulations Assessment, including assessing 
the impact on water quality, comes from the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations. These are UK regulations. It has been confirmed verbally and through draft 
regulations that Government do not intend to weaken the environmental standards in the 
Habitats Regulations.



4
 COUNCIL

25 September 2019

Question 2 from Councillor Davis to Councillor Bowerman

I find the Havant Council website difficult to use, even frustrating to find what you are 
looking for... Could you put the "Customer Services" Telephone number on the front page? 

In Councillor’s Bowerman’s absence, a written reply to be provided after the meeting.

Question 3 from Councillor Davis to Councillor Bowerman

Reference the Customer Services Telephone number... It has a number of menu's you 
have to go through before getting to the one you think is the correct one. Are they all 
necessary? Could they be reduced?

In Councillor’s Bowerman’s absence, a written reply to be provided after the meeting.

Question 4 from Councillor Davis to Councillor Bowerman

The Customer Services auto system did not recognise "Universal Credit". Could this be 
added to the recognition system and a redirect to the DWP telephone/website added?

In Councillor’s Bowerman’s absence, a written reply to be provided after the meeting.

Question 5 from Councillor Francis to Councillor Pike

With the increasing need for us to address the need for Havant to play its part by making 
reductions in our emissions of C02, how are we planning to be able to accelerate our 
programme? Are there even more ambitious projects such as solar farms or wind turbines 
to produce more of our own electricity?

Question 6 from Councillor Francis to Councillor Pike

Could you tell us more about retrofit installations and the publicity campaign to encourage 
residents to save energy, carbon and money through the Energy Company Obligation. 
(Please tell us what it is.)

Response:  If a resident is on a low income, but their home is high cost, or if the resident 
has certain health conditions which mean they are vulnerable to living in a cold home. 
Retrofit Partners make applications to HBC, and we approve the work. The Retrofit partner 
applies directly to the obligated energy company. All money flows from the obligated energy 
company to the installer who undertakes the work. There are plans to publicize this activity 
once all existing retrofit partners have signed a new Memorandum of Understanding which 
covers areas like safeguarding, data protection, GDPR and industry standards. A short 
paper describing the retrofit can be provided if required.



5
 COUNCIL

25 September 2019

The short explanation of how funding for retrofit measures are delivered through the Energy 
Company Obligation are broadly in line with criteria in a published 'Statement of Intent' 
which can be found here: 

https://www.havant.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/HBC%20SoI%20ECO%20v2%20N
ov18%20%281%29.pdf

Question 7 from Councillor Francis to Councillor Pike

Are our builders complying with our recommendations to build to standards that are 
sustainable?

Response:  There are minimum national standards for energy performance and C02 
emissions for new buildings set within the Building Regulations. The checking of the design 
and construction of building work to ensure it meets these standards is carried out by the 
Local Authority or Private Sector Building Control – it is the developers choice who they 
use.
 
Where the Building Control body becomes aware that the standards are not being met there 
is a process where ultimately the Local Authority (and only the Local Authority) could take 
enforcement action to ensure the building work complied. However, for the Local Authority 
to know that the standards have not been met relies on the inspection process being 100% 
failsafe, which being a ‘spot-check’ system it can never be, particularly one which exists in a 
price competitive market where reducing the number of inspections (and therefore price) 
can potentially win more work.
 
There is a reliance on everyone in the supply chain from product manufacturers, architects, 
developers, builders and Building Control to ensure projects are built to meet the statutory 
requirements.

Question 8 from Councillor Francis to Councillor Pike

What is the Havant's policy, at the moment, regarding Nitrate Neutrality?  Are we still able 
to build?

The Council’s Position Statement on the matter goes into full detail and is available 
at www.havant.gov.uk/nitrogen. This allows planning applications for nutrient neutral 
development, or those that are issued with Grampian conditions, to be approved. However, 
this does severely limit the amount of development that can take place. As a result, our 
officers and myself [Cllr Pike] are devoting a huge amount of effort into finding a solution for 
the short term so that developments need not be held up by this issue and sustainable 
development to address the need for housing in the Borough can recommence in full.

Question 9 from Councillor Francis to Councillor Wilson

Is our Brexit team funded by Central Government?

http://www.havant.gov.uk/nitrogen


6
 COUNCIL

25 September 2019

A Council Brexit team is in place and meets on a regular basis to review preparations for 
Brexit. We have a nominated lead officer, our Director of Regeneration & Place who is the 
point of contact with Central Government. Our Brexit team and Brexit lead officer is made 
up of existing staff and resources.

Question 10 from Councillor Francis to Councillor Wilson

Did they (Brexit team) receive central advice about how to proceed and what to expect?

Response:  Central Government have provided advice on how to prepare for Brexit 
including a checklist of items to review. The checklist includes the following: statutory & 
regulatory services for which the Council is responsible for, border areas, supply chain, data 
handling, local partnership working and communications. In addition, the Government have 
been holding monthly calls for local authorities with updates from the Department of 
Transport, Department of Health and Home Office, the last call being held recently on 
23rd September 2019.  Further to this there are 9 regional Brexit leads from across the 
Country to feed in and receive information with weekly updates provided from Central 
Government.

Question 11 from Councillor Francis to Councillor Wilson

What traffic problems are expected.  What other Council preparations are being made?  (as 
a result of Brexit)?

Response:  The Local Resilience Forum (LRF) have led on responding to any traffic issues 
as a result of no-deal. Traffic problems could include road congestion (impacted as a result 
of our proximity to Portsmouth Port) or fuel shortages.  The LRF have completed work on 
traffic modelling, in liaison with Department for Transport, to understand potential impacts 
on the road network. The LRF coordinate emergency plans and procedures for major 
incidents across the area. Through the LRF organisations work together to prepare for, 
respond to and recover from emergencies. There is a dedicated sub-group of LRF working 
on Brexit of which Havant Borough Council are involved through our Emergency Planning 
team.
 
The Council has its own business continuity plans in place to ensure essential council 
services are still provided in the event of no-deal Brexit. These business continuity planning 
have involved an exercise in understanding which staff can get into work (those who live 
locally and can walk) and which staff cannot in the event of road congestion or fuel 
shortages. For those staff providing essential council services who may struggle to get into 
work due to road congestion they will be able to work from home. 

Question 12 from Councillor Francis to Councillor Wilson

What help, other than the web site, are we able to offer local residents and businesses (as 
a result of Brexit)?



7
 COUNCIL

25 September 2019

Response:  Our external work is focussed on supporting local businesses and residents. 
We have recently conducted a survey with local businesses to understand how prepared 
they are for Brexit, in particular no-deal Brexit. We are reviewing the survey information and 
this will help us inform what further work we can look at doing to support local businesses. 
Local businesses also had access to assistance from Solent LEP. Our webpage 
has recently been updated with further information and links to the 'Get Ready for Brexit' 
Government webpages. These webpages contain the necessary information for what 
businesses and residents need to do to be prepared for a no-deal Brexit.

24 Urgent Questions Under Standing Order 23 

There were no urgent questions.

25 Acceptance of Minutes 

Proposed by Councillor Satchwell and seconded by Councillor Keast, it was

RESOLVED that the minutes of Committees held since the last meeting of the Council be 
received.

The meeting commenced at 5.00 pm and concluded at 5.47 pm





Mayor’s Report to Full Council - 13 November 2019

September’s arrival ended the small breather I had in August, and as the 
children went back to school the engagements increased.  On the evening of 
the 7th, we had our second visit to the Hayling Island Amateur Dramatic 
Society and re-lived the wonderful comedy that was Dads Army.  Great 
casting and acting took us back to that great series.

Our first engagement with a neighbouring authority came with the Basingstoke 
Civic Day, when we visited Laverstock Farm which is owned by the ex-
Formula One racing driver Jody Scheckter and his wife and where they raise 
a herd of water buffalo and make the most amazing Mozzarella.  We were 
able to visit some day-old calves and I could have stayed with them all day! In 
the afternoon we visited a local distillery which was fascinating. 

The following day it was Fareham’s Civic Day, and that began with a visit to 
Solent Airport and an enthralling time at a flight simulator and a tour of the 
airport. We had a heart stopping visit by two WW2 Spitfires which brought 
tears to my eyes. We then visited the Navy at HMS Collingwood and enjoyed 
some naval history in the wonderful surroundings of the Officers Mess. In the 
afternoon we visited Bursledon Brick Works, which is now a Museum and 
open to the public. This was a fascinating picture of life in our area, not so 
many years ago, and well worth a visit. 

On the 12th September we went to the 10th Birthday celebration of the Spring 
in Havant, which was a very good evening.  A very different engagement 
occurred the following day when Koko the only dog to ever be invited to the 
Mayor’s Parlour, came to receive a certificate for collecting almost 1500 
plastic bottles which her owner then recycles.  We could all learn from her, 
stop throwing our litter all over our environment and take it home with us to 
dispose of properly. Well done Koko!

Malta celebration day was an opportunity to meet the many Maltese who live 
in our Borough. We were blessed with really good weather and this 
engagement was followed by lunch at the Havant Rugby Club to celebrate the 
official opening of the amazing extension to their facilities which will be of 
huge benefit to them.  We watched a superb match between the Havant team 
and Chichester which Havant won with ease!

Sunday 15th saw us attend the Induction of a new vicar at the Church of the 
Good Shepherd in Crookhorn, and we hope that the Rev. Janette Smith 
enjoys her ministry there.  Following a meeting for Dementia Friendly 
Hampshire at the Acorn Centre in Wecock Farm, we attended the Mayor of 
Test Valley Civic afternoon at the beautiful house and gardens of the Hilliard 
estate which was a wonderful event.

September 20th brought a visit to Hedge End for the AGM of Stop Domestic 
Abuse. This is such an important life line to many sufferers of domestic abuse, 



and I was very happy to be there to support it. This was followed the next 
morning by joining in the Memory Walk for Dementia on Hayling Island, and 
then learning how to make pizzas and opening the new Papa John’s Pizza 
Restaurant in Waterlooville.

Sunday was the Fareham Civic Service, which was very uplifting and in the 
afternoon, I took flowers and had tea with a delightful lady Mrs Joan Hillier, 
celebrating her 100th Birthday. It was a real pleasure and privilege to attend.
On the 25th, after a Civic Dinner in Fareham the previous evening, I had four 
engagements, starting with a Cake Judging Competition at 9:30 in the 
morning, a visit to Havant Men’s Shed, a Full Council Briefing, followed by Full 
Council and then hosting farewell in the Parlour for an Officer leaving after 23 
years’ service.

Saturday 28th saw me reliving my youth by riding down the seafront on 
Hayling Island on the back of a Harley Davidson to open the Bike Show at 
Eastoke Corner.  What fabulous fun!  I was then asked to judge the winning 
bikes, and chose two, one for the amazing artwork featuring The Pirates of the 
Caribbean, and the other for the devotion the owner had put into every inch of 
it. I had no idea these amazing bikes could cost soooo much!

Harvest Festival was celebration the following morning at the beautiful St. 
John’s Church Purbrook, and I was presented very kindly with a beautiful 
bouquet of Autumn coloured flowers, which was a great surprise and made 
my day.

Friday 4th October saw me opening the newly refurbished Wickes store in 
Havant, and that was my last appointment for the end of my fifth month.



NON-EXEMPT

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council 13 November 2019

Note the approach and Timetable for the Constitutional Review
Councillor Bowerman
Vice-Chairman of the Constitution Sub-Committee

FOR NOTING

Director: Chief Financial Officer

Author: Head of Legal Services

1.0 Purpose of the paper

1.1 In July this year Full Council approved a review of the constitution to be 
overseen jointly with East Hampshire via a sub-committee of full council. The 
sub-committee’s first meeting was on14 October 2019 and the Committee 
approved the approach to be taken re-drafting the constitution.

 
2.0 Recommendations

2.1 Note the draft contents page in appendix 1
2.2 Note the draft timetable for delivery appendix 2
2.3 Note the approach to the drafting of the Havant Borough Council 

Constitution as set out in appendix 3

3.0 Executive summary

3.1 The constitution of Havant Borough Council has survived many years and 
multiple reviews which over time have resulted in the current document 
beginning to show its age through inconsistencies and historic anomalies.

3.2 The review will create a new bespoke Constitution that is uniquely designed 
to meet the needs of Havant Borough Council.

3.3 The proposed approach is designed to simplify the structure of the document 
and to make it easier to use for officers and members. The accessibility of 
the constitution is extremely important as this is a key working document for 
Havant Borough Council. One of the main areas for review is the delegations 
and committee functions. This is important to ensure there are clear 
delegations to officers, clarity around the member officer interface and 
relationship of both to committees. The recommendations for Havant 
Borough Council are set out in more detail in appendix 3.



3.4 The policy considerations were initially considered at Full Council but 
following commentary around training these were withdrawn and refreshed. 
The committee has made many recommendations to alter the policy wording 
to reflect the wider concerns expressed at council.

3.5 Training is now reflective of the proposal contained in recommendation 25 of 
the recent report by the Committee for Standards in Public life “Local 
Government Ethical Standards. Which is a review by the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life.” published in January 2019. This places the 
responsibility for ensuring the competence of councillors put forward to 
committees with the political group leaders. Training should be made 
available to members and group leaders will then be able to select members 
for each committee based upon training or other experience.

3.6 In addition, officers have been asked to look at options to ensure appropriate 
training is provided and that attendance is appropriately recorded for group 
leaders and if appropriate, wider circulation. An additional policy requirement 
was added in respect of plain English and if appropriate obtain a clear 
English accreditation. 

3.7 The constitutions are designed to be more succinct and the initial draft will 
follow the sample contents page at appendix 1.

3.8 Havant will have its own dedicated constitution, tailored to meet the needs of 
Havant Borough Council. The timetable in Appendix 2 provides for indicative 
consultation but Members who wish, will be encouraged to comment 
throughout the development of the document as ultimately the elected 
members of Havant will have the final approval of their Constitution.

3.9 The engagement of all members is important to the process as any 
constitution will require approval at Full Council. The draft timetable sets out 
some provisional arrangement for wider member consultation. However, it is 
important to note the drafts will be accessible to all members who will be 
encouraged to consider, ask questions, comment and contribute before the 
document is presented to Full Council in final draft form. The aim is to 
ensure there are no controversial elements by the time of final approval. 
After it has been approved in draft, the document with any amendments from 
council, will be prepared as a final document to be presented to Full Council 
for final approval.

3.10 The election cycle 2020 for Havant Borough Council may result in a clash 
between the decision making in the pre-election period, the review 
finalisation and the need to have the constitution prepared for annual 
council. Although every effort will be made to ensure any controversial 
elements are resolved, and to avoid additional meetings, members should 
be aware it may require an extraordinary meeting of council in March 2020. 



4.0 Additional budgetary implications

4.1 None

5.0 Background and corporate strategy and directorate business plan(s)

5.1 This links directly to the production of a revised constitution as delegated by 
council to the sub-committee which met on the 14 October 2019.

6.0 Options and reasons for recommending relevant option

6.1 Option 1:  Do Nothing. This constitution could simply be updated in its 
current form. This would be the simplest approach but would 
retain the majority of issues which would then be resource 
intensive to maintain.

6.2 Option 2: Significantly alter the structure of the constitution to make it 
more flexible and in need of less formal reviews and updating. 
To improve readability and accessibility for members and 
officers and ensure the constitution is properly placed as a core 
working document in the governance structures.

7.0 Equality Impact Assessment

7.1 Equality issues will be addressed in the drafting of the both in structure and 
style and it should be noted the sub committee have requested the 
document is drafted in a plain English to improve accessibility and 
understanding.

Resource implications

7.1 Financial implications: None
 
7.2 Human Resource implications: None

 
7.3 Information Governance implications: None                            

7.4 Other resource implications: Additional resource implications will be met by 
the Monitoring Officer team out of existing resources.

8.0 Legal implications

8.1 This approach is designed to facilitate a more modern and flexible 
constitution that is fully up to date and has a high degree of ‘future proofing’. 
The structure is designed to be simpler for Members and Officers with much 
clearer delegations. 

9.0 Significant risks

9.1 The do-nothing option risks future challenge. The risk of challenge increases 
over time as there is more opportunity for mis-judgements to occur. 



10.0 Consultation

10.1 This is a recommendation from the sub-committee, and the draft timetable 
sets out a proposed consultation 

11.0 Communication

11.1 The constitution will be republished in draft for wider comments when the 
initial document is completed.

Appendix 1 - 3

Appendix 1 Constitution Contents page
Appendix 2 Indicative timetable
Appendix 3 Bevan Brittan health check and proposals

Agreed and Signed off by:

Monitoring Officer: 28.10.19 
S151 Officer: 29.10.19
Portfolio Holder: 25.10.19

Contact Officer: David Brown
Job Title: Interim Head of Legal Services
Telephone: 023 9244 6524
E-Mail: David.Brown@easthants.gov.uk

mailto:David.Brown@easthants.gov.uk


Appendix 1 

East Hampshire and Havant Councils

Example title page for the revised Constitution: Contents

Page
Part 1 - Summary and Explanation:

(This section sets out an overview of how the Council 
operates, what the key parts of the Constitution cover and 
what rights members of the public/residents have and it will 
incorporate some more detail from the current Articles).

Part 2 - Responsibility for Functions:

Diagrammatic explanation of decision making 
bodies/Management Structure
Council Functions
Local Choice Functions
Executive Functions
Committees
Joint Arrangements
Officer Delegations (including high level Officer structure 
charts)
Proper Officer Provisions

Part 3 - Standing Orders

Council and Committee Meetings Standing Orders
Executive Standing Orders (including Cabinet Committee 
Rules)
Overview and Scrutiny Standing Orders
Access to Information Standing Orders (including rules on 
Public Speaking combining all current rules or hyperlinking)
Budget, Policy Framework and Financial Standing Orders
Contracts Standing Orders
Officer Employment Standing Orders

Part 4 - Codes and Protocols

Members’ Code of Conduct (and Arrangements for dealing 
with complaints regarding Breach of the Code or hyperlink)
Officers’ Code of Conduct
Protocol on Member/ Officer Relations

Part 5 - Members’ Allowances Scheme:

Members’ Allowances Scheme (could be hyperlinked)

file:///C:/NRPortbl/MATTERS/RARMSTRONG/20495649_1.doc%23Summaryexplanation


Part 6 - Glossary of Terms

Parts which we advise could be removed altogether (with some of the content 
being included elsewhere):

Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution
Article 1 Members of the Council
Article 2 Residents and the Council
Article 3 The Full Council and Committees
Article 4 The Chairman of the Council
Article 5 Non-Executive Functions 
Article 6 The Cabinet [Scrutiny Board HBC]
Article 7 Joint Arrangements [The Cabinet HBC]
Article 8 Officers [Joint Arrangements HBC]
Article 9 Decision Making [Officers HBC]
Article 10 Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters [Decision Making HBC]
Article 11 Review and Revision of the Constitution [Finance, Contracts and Legal 
Matters HBC]
Article 12 Description of Executive Arrangements [Review and Revision of the 
Constitution HBC]
[Article 13 Description of Executive Arrangements HBC]

Part 3 - Rules, Procedures and Protocols
Section J Committee and Sub-Committee Standing Orders – these will be 
included in the Council Procedure Rules or within the specific Terms of Reference 
for the particular committee. 
Section 
M – Q (EHDC) & These sections will be consolidated into a streamlined set of 
K-O (HBC) &  Financial Procedure Rules 
Appendices 1-3

Parts which could to be referred to by hyperlink rather than being included in 
full:

List of Councillors
Management Structure
Public Speaking Rules
Members’ Allowances Scheme (or could remain) 
Description of Councillors' Roles
Deputations/Petition Scheme – (could be summarised as Guidance elsewhere on 
the web and hyperlinked)

Other documents that could be omitted altogether include: 

Statutory references e.g. extract of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015



APPENDIX 2

TIMETABLE FOR JOINT CONSTITUTION SUB-COMMITTEE

Date Location

14 October 2019 First Meeting Sub Committee
Bevan Brittan to attend and 
present a general report & Health 
Check and proposals

Penns Place

17 October 2019 Cabinet Briefing to inform on 
approach agreed at Sub-
Committee and explain 
programme of work, timetable 
and future engagement.

EHDC

23 October 2019 Cabinet Briefing to inform on 
approach agreed at Sub-
Committee and explain 
programme of work, timetable 
and future engagement.

HBC

7 November 2019 Report to Council this report will 
confirm timetable and structure of 
document and the policy 
principles agreed.

EHDC

13 November 2019 Report to Council this report will 
confirm timetable and structure of 
document and the policy 
principles agreed.

HBC

13 December 2019 Second Meeting Review of first 
draft of constitution. Agree 
approach to identified issues and 
confirm any policy matters 
identified 

The Plaza

28 January 2020 Third Meeting to finalise drafting 
issues and any extant policy 
matters

To be confirmed

To be confirmed Councillor Briefing Session with 
draft constitution. All members to 
input on to draft prior to first 
presentation to full Council. 

HBC
To be confirmed



Date Location

To be confirmed Councillor Briefing Session with 
draft constitution. All members to 
input on to draft prior to first 
presentation to full Council.

EHDC
To be confirmed

16 February 2019 Budget Council draft presented 
for approval in principle and 
noting of any amendments.

EHDC

 26 February 2020 Budget Council draft presented 
for approval in principle and 
noting of any amendments. 

HBC

9 April 2020 Extraordinary Council - final 
document to be considered

EHDC

March 2020 no date 
selected PURDAH

Extraordinary Council – final 
document to be considered

HBC



 

1

Havant Borough Council – Constitution Review
Statutory Compliance Checklist 

This compliance checklist sets out the statutory requirements for what must appear (somewhere) in a local authority constitution. It is a useful check to identify 
any missing areas and also a quick reference point for finding statutory information in the document. It will need to be updated if the format of the Constitution 
is changed.

Conclusion

Havant Borough Council's Constitution is broadly compliant and contains the core information required by the statutory provisions. There are a few areas which 
need to be reviewed and addressed to ensure full compliance and to update references in relation to

 Statutory references
 Access to Information Procedure Rules 
 Councillor’s Allowances Scheme 
 The rights of inhabitants of the authority’s area and more specifically public speaking at meetings and petitions 
 Shared services/joint arrangements
 Personnel/Staffing Committee arrangements
 Audit arrangements including rights to inspect

We suggest these are addressed as the new Constitution is developed and finalised

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

1 THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 (CONSTITUTIONS) (ENGLAND) DIRECTION 2000

The Secretary of State for the Environment, Transport and the Regions, in the exercise of his powers under sections 37(1)(a) (now s.9P) and 48(7) 
(now s.9R) of the Local Government Act 2000 (c.22) (the Act) and all other powers enabling him in that behalf, hereby directs all local authorities in 
England to which Part II of the Act applies as follows:

Miscellaneous and interpretation

In the direction:

"constitution" has the meaning given by section 37(1) (now 9P) of the Act,



 

2

"overview and scrutiny committee" …in the case of a local authority which is operating executive arrangements has the meaning given by 
section 21(1) (now.s.9F(1)) of the Act

In complying with this direction a local authority must have regard to any guidance issued for the time being by the Secretary of State under 
section 38 (now s.9Q) of the Act.

The Constitution. 

The constitution prepared and kept up to date in accordance with section 37(1) (now s.9P) of the Act by a local authority which is operating executive 
arrangements or, as the case may be, alternative arrangements must include:

Requirement of Direction Council's Constitution Comment

a a summary and explanation of the purpose and content 
of the constitution;

Contents
Part 1

We note that the Contents page provides a useful overall 
picture of the composition of the Constitution. The 
Memorandum of the Council’s Constitution provides basic 
information about the Council but it could provide more 
information in a user friendly manner, on how the Council 
operates and how decisions are made and/or link to the 
Council’s website pages. 

b a description of the composition of the council, the 
scheme of ordinary elections for members of the council 
and their terms of office;

Part 1
Part 2 – Article 1

It would be helpful to have a hyperlink to the actual 
composition of the Council, to general members/elections 
pages on the Council's website to make it easier to keep up 
to date after elections and by-elections.

c a description of the principal roles and functions of the 
members of the council under executive arrangements or, 
as the case may be, alternative arrangements including 
the rights and duties of those members;

Part 2 – Articles 3-7 and 13
Part 3 – Introduction, Sections B 
(Executive Functions), F (Access to 
Information Standing Orders), G 
(Budget & Policy Framework 
Standing Orders), H (Cabinet 
Standing Orders)
Part 4

Part 3 section B provides a description of Executive 
Arrangements and Part 3 Section D for Officers. As a whole 
the Constitution meets the requirements of the Regulations. 
However, we note that the information is diffuse within the 
Constitution, and would benefit from consolidation and more 
effective cross referencing. 

We note that there is no definition of ‘key decision’ in so far 
as there is no indication of what would constitute significant 
expenditure or savings. We would recommend that this is 
clarified, together with a position taken on how key decisions 
are to be determined.



 

3

Requirement of Direction Council's Constitution Comment

d the scheme of allowances for members of the authority 
drawn up in accordance with regulations made under 
section 18 of the Local Government and Housing Act 
1989 (c.42);

Part 5 The scheme was adopted in March 2016. The Local 
Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 
2003 (SI 2003/1021) require a scheme to be adopted each 
year by 31 March of the year preceding that to which the 
scheme will apply, and the scheme will need to be amended 
to reflect that. The reference to four years in these 
regulations is to the IRP reviewing its recommendations no 
more than every four years.  

e a description of the rights and responsibilities of 
inhabitants of the authority's area including:

i.  their rights to vote in elections for the return of 
members of the authority;
ii.  their rights to access to information about the 
authority's activities;
iii.  their rights of access to meetings of the 
council, its committees and sub-committees and 
any joint committees established with any other 
authority; and
iv.  their rights of access to meetings of the 
executive and committees of the executive,

Part 2 – Article 2
Part 3 – Section E (Council Standing 
Orders)
Part 3 – Section F (Access to 
Information Standing Orders)
Part 3 – Section H (Cabinet 
Standing Orders)
Part 3 – Section L (public speaking 
Appendices)

A protocol or Guidance note for the public on accessing 
meetings would be useful to summarise their rights or give 
more information in a revised Summary and Explanation 
rather than having a number of sets of information about 
different public speaking requirements including e.g. in the 
various Standing Orders relating to different Committees as 
Appendices etc. 

The rules around public questions and deputations are not 
comprehensive and would benefit from more prescription to 
include the total amount of time to be allotted at a meeting to 
questions/deputations. Equally the rules around the receipt 
of petitions should be clarified, including for e.g. must be 
related to Council functions or matters affecting the area; not 
be substantially the same as a question, motion or deputation 
which has been put at a meeting of the Council in the past 
six months etc.

f a description of the roles of the authority itself under 
executive arrangements (or, as the case may be, 
alternative arrangements) including:

i.  the functions which may be exercised only by 
the authority itself or which may to some extent 
be exercised only by the authority itself 
(including, in the case of a local authority 
operating executive arrangements any plans and 
strategies which are subject to approval or 

Part 2 – Articles 3, 5 & 6, 11
Part 3 – Introduction, Sections A 
(Local Choice Functions), B 
(Executive Functions), C (Non-
Executive Functions), D (Scheme 
of Delegation to Officers), E 
(Council Standing Orders), F 
(Access to Information Standing 
Orders), G (Budget and Policy 
Framework Standing Orders) , I 

There could be reference to policies that the Council must 
approve such as the Pay Policy Statement alongside the 
Policy Framework set out in Part 2 Article 3.2 (which could 
be located elsewhere in a new constitution).

Part 3 Section A Local Choice Functions could be clearer as 
to the respective roles and delegation of powers between 
members and officers – also regarding obtaining of 
information under section 330 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990/section 16 Local Government 



 

4

Requirement of Direction Council's Constitution Comment

adoption by the authority itself by virtue of 
regulation 5 of, and paragraph 1 of Schedule 4 to, 
the Local Authorities (Functions and 
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 
(S.I. 2000/2853)); and

ii.  any rules governing the conduct and 
proceedings of meetings of the authority itself 
whether specified in the authority's standing 
orders or otherwise;

(Overview and Scrutiny Standing 
Orders)

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 as to persons with 
interests in land and making agreements with other local 
authorities for the placing of staff at the disposal of those 
other authorities under section 113 LGA 1972.  

We advise that it would be preferable to have the non-
executive functions clearly set out in a single dedicated 
section, setting out the functions of the Council and its 
committees. 

The Officer Scheme of Delegation is complex and difficult to 
navigate. It could be simplified by providing more general 
delegations and making reference to the matters reserved to 
members, particularly any financial limits (we have seen 
financial limits relating to virement but page 86 references 
sale/disposal and acquisition of land up to “agreed values”). 

g a description of the roles and functions of the chairman of 
the council (including a chairman entitled to the style of 
mayor);

Part 2 – Article 4
Part 3 Section E – Council Standing 
Orders 

Article 4 contains useful information which we recommend is 
moved to the Summary and Explanation. 

h a description of the functions of the local authority 
executive which, for the time being, are exercisable by 
individual members of the local authority executive stating 
as respects each function, the name of the member by 
whom it is exercisable;

Part 2 – Article 7
Part 3, Section B 

Portfolios are listed in Part 3, Section B  page 83 onwards

i a description of the functions of the local authority 
executive which, for the time being, are exercisable by the 
executive collectively or a committee of the executive, 
stating as respects each function, the membership of the 
body by who it is exercisable;

Part 2 – Article 7
Part 3 – Section B (Cabinet 
Standing Orders)
Part 3 – Section F (Access to 
Information Standing Orders)
Part 3 – Section H (Cabinet 
Standing Orders)

Note – there are no standing cabinet committees

Would it be useful to mention the ability to create advisory 
only/committees of the Cabinet?

j a description of those powers of the executive which for 
the time being are exercisable by an officer of the local 
authority stating the title of the officer by whom each of 
the powers so specified is for the time being exercisable, 

Part 2 - Article 9 Officers
Part 2 – Article 10– Finance, 
Contracts and Legal matters
Part 3 – Section A Local Choice 

The Scheme of Delegation is complex. It could be simplified 
by providing more general delegations not lists of legislation, 
many of which are out of date and making reference to the 
matters reserved to members. It would benefit from an 



 

5

Requirement of Direction Council's Constitution Comment

other than any power exercisable by the officer for a 
specified period not exceeding six months;

Functions
Part 3 – Section D Scheme of 
Delegation to Officers

introduction setting out the parameters of officer powers. It 
would also benefit from having the delegations in one place 
rather than included in both the Scheme of Delegation and 
also the terms of reference of committees (e.g. Article 5).

We recommend that references to specific legislation are 
removed as they create a need for regular updating. 
We would also recommend having a separate section for 
proper officer functions. 

k a description of the arrangements for the operation of 
overview and scrutiny committees including
i.  the terms of reference and membership of those 
committees and any rules governing the exercise of their 
functions; and
ii.  any rules governing the conduct and proceedings of 
meetings of those committees whether specified in the 
authority's standing orders or otherwise'

Part 2 – Article 6
Part 3 – Section F Access to 
Information Standing Orders 
Part 3 – Section G Budget and 
Policy Framework Standing Orders 
Part 3 – Section I Scrutiny Standing 
Orders

There are various references to call-in, in the Constitution, 
meaning that the scope and application of call-in is not clear.
All executive decisions are potentially capable of call-in 
under section 9F LGA 2000 and this could be set out more 
clearly in the constitution.

l in the case of a local authority which is operating 
executive arrangements, a description of the roles of the 
executive, committees of the executive and members of 
the executive including:
i.  the roles, functions, rights, responsibilities and duties 
of members of the executive;
ii.  in the case of a local authority which is operating 
executive arrangements which include a leader and 
cabinet form of executive, any rules governing the 
election of the executive leader;
iii.  any rules governing the appointment of members of 
the executive;
iv.  any provisions in the local authority's executive 
arrangements with respect to the quorum, proceedings 
and location of meetings of the executive;
v.  any provisions in the local authority's executive 
arrangements with respect to the appointment of 
committees of the executive; and

Part 2 – Articles 3 & 7

Part 3 – Section B Executive 
Functions

Part 3 – Section E Council Standing 
Orders

Part 3 – Section F Access to 
Information Standing Orders 

Part 3 – Section H Cabinet Standing 
Orders 
Part 

The Leader is elected by simple majority of Full Council for a 
four year term. The references to ‘appointing’ the Leader 
should be replaced to reflect “election”. 

Reference to suspension of a Cabinet member under Part III 
of the LGA 2000 in Article 7 should be removed as it has 
been repealed. 



 

6

Requirement of Direction Council's Constitution Comment

vi.  N/A (Mayor and Council Manager option – now 
repealed)

m N/A (Mayor and Council Manager option – now repealed) N/A
n a description of the roles of any committees or sub-

committees appointed by the authority in accordance with 
section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 (c.70) 
including:
i.  the membership, terms of reference and functions of 
such committees or sub-committees; and
ii.  any rules governing the conduct and proceedings of 
meetings of those committees or sub-committees 
whether specified in the authority's standing orders or 
otherwise

Part 2 – Article 5
Part 3, sections (C), (E), (F), (G), (I) The responsibilities of Committees would benefit from being 

in one place.

o a description of those powers of the council which for the 
time being are exercisable by an officer of the local 
authority stating the title of the officer by whom each of 
the powers so specified is for the time being exercisable, 
other than any power exercisable by the officer for a 
specified period not exceeding six months;

Part 2 – Article 5 Non Executive 
Functions 
Part 2 - Article 9  Officers
Part 2 – Article 11 Finance, 
Contracts and Legal matters
Part 2 – Article 12 Review and 
Revision of the Constitution 
Part 3 – Section D Scheme of 
Delegation to Officers

The Officer responsibilities would benefit from being in one 
place.

p a description of the roles of the local authority's Standards 
Committee and any parish council sub-committee of the 
Standards Committee appointed in accordance with 
sections 53 or 55 of the Act including:
i.  the membership, terms of reference and functions of 
that committee or sub-committee; and
ii.  any rules governing the conduct and proceedings of 
meetings of that committee or sub-committee whether 
specified in the authority's standing orders or otherwise;

Part 2 – Article 5  
Governance, Audit and Finance 
Committee – may appoint Sub-
Committees and Panels

The Council's decision-making bodies are included, not the 
arrangements required under s28 Localism Act 2011.

q a description of the roles of any area committees 
appointed by the authority to exercise functions in 
accordance with regulations 16A of the Local 
Government (Committees and Political Groups) 
Regulations 1990 (SI 1990/1553) or, as the case may be, 

The Council does not appear to have any area committees. 
The Constitution should specifically state that this is the 
case 



 

7

Requirement of Direction Council's Constitution Comment

section 18 of the Act and the Local Authorities 
(Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) (England) 
Regulations 2000 (SI 2000/2851) [now 2012 Regulations] 
including:
i.  the membership, terms of reference and functions of 
such committees; and
ii.  any rules governing the conduct and proceedings of 
meetings of those committees whether specified in the 
authority's standing orders or otherwise

r a description of any joint arrangements made with any 
other local authorities under section 101(5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 including:
i.  the terms of those arrangements;
ii.  the membership, terms of reference and functions of 
any joint committees established under those 
arrangements; and
iii.  any rules governing the conduct and proceedings of 
meetings of those joint committees whether specified in 
the authority's standing orders or otherwise

Part 2 – Article  5 Joint Human 
Resources Committee
Part 2 – Article 8 Joint 
Arrangements 
Part 3 – Section B and E Council 
Standing Orders

According to Article 8, the Council has several joint 
committees (East Hampshire District Council and Havant 
Borough Council Joint Human Resources Committee; 5 
Councils Joint Scrutiny Committee (which may have been 
wound up); the Parking and Traffic Regulations Outside 
London Adjudication Joint Committee (PATROLAJC)); and 
West of Waterlooville MDA Joint Planning Committee with 
Winchester City Council, however other than this initial 
reference, the constitution only then deals with the Joint 
Human Resources Committee and West of Waterlooville 
MDA Joint Planning Committee.  It is not clear which 
procedure rules apply to the other joint committees. The 
Procedure Rules and other arrangements should be  
included in the Constitution or ideally hyper-linked

s a description of any arrangements made with another 
local authority for the discharge of functions by that other 
local authority or the executive of that other local authority 
in accordance with section 101(1)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 or, as the case may be, Local 
Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of 
Functions) (England) Regulations 2000 –[now 2012 
Regulations];

Part 2 – Article 8 Joint Arrangements
Part 3 – Section B 

5 Councils Joint Committee and Client Relationship 
Director; 
Coastal Partnership?
Hampshire Broadband Partnership?
See also comment above

t a description of the roles of officers of the local authority 
including:
i.  the management structure for officers of the authority;
ii.  any arrangements made under section 101 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 or, as the case may be, section 14, 

Part 2 – Article 5 Non Executive 
Functions 
Part 2 - Article 9  Officers
Part 2 – Article 11 Finance, 
Contracts and Legal matters

We note that the Council’s full Management Structure is not 
reflected in the Constitution. We recommend that this is 
hyperlinked to the maintained version on the Council's 
website.



 

8

Requirement of Direction Council's Constitution Comment

15 or 16 of the 2000 Act [now 9EA and 9EB] for the 
discharge of functions by officers of the authority;
iii.  the roles and functions of the head of paid service, 
monitoring officer and chief finance officer;
iv.  the code of conduct for local government employees 
issued by the Secretary of State in accordance with 
section 82 of the Act;
v.  any rules governing the recruitment, appointment, 
dismissal and disciplinary action for officers of the 
authority;
vi.  any protocol established by the authority in respect of 
relationships between members of the authority and 
officers of the authority;

Part 2 – Article 12 Review and 
Revision of the Constitution 

Part 3 – Section A Local Choice 
Functions
Part 3 – Section D Scheme of 
Delegation to Officers 
Part 3 – Section K Officer 
Employment Standing Orders
Part 4 – Section B Code of Conduct 
for Employees
Part 4 – Section C Councillor/Officer 
Relations Protocol 

Provisions would benefit from being consolidated into fewer 
places

u a description of the arrangements the authority has in 
place for access of the public, members of the authority 
and officers of the authority to meetings of the authority, 
committees and sub-committees of the authority, joint 
committees established with any other local authority, the 
executive and committees of the executive

Part 2 – Article 2 Residents and 
The Council 
Part 3 – Section F Access to 
Information Standing Orders 
Part 3 – Section H Cabinet Standing 
Orders 
Part 3 – Section L (public speaking 
Appendices)

v a description of the arrangements the authority has in 
place for access of the public, members of the authority 
and officers of the authority to information about the 
decisions made or to be made by in respect of local 
authority's functions and activities.

Part 2 – Article 2 Residents and The 
Council 
Part 3 – Section E Council Standing 
Orders
Part 3 – Section F Access to 
Information Standing Orders 
Part 3 – Section H Cabinet Standing 
Orders 

w a register stating
i.  the name and address of every member of the local 
authority executive for the time being and the ward or 
division (if any) which he represents; and
ii. the name of every member of each committee of the 
local authority's executive for the time being.

Not included This information could be hyperlinked to Councillor pages on 
the web

x a description of the rules and procedures for the 
management of its financial, contractual and legal affairs 

Part 2 – Article 5 Non Executive 
Functions 

We consider that the Financial Procedure rules can be 
shortened, and that repetition between the various parts of 



 

9

Requirement of Direction Council's Constitution Comment

including:
i.  procedures for auditing of the local authority;
ii.  the local authority's financial rules or regulations or 
such equivalent provisions as the local authority may 
have in place whether specified in the authority's standing 
orders or otherwise;
iii.  rules, regulations and procedures in respect of 
contracts and procurement including authentication of 
documents whether specified in the authority's standing 
orders or otherwise; and
iv.  rules and procedures in respect of legal proceedings 
brought by and against the local authority

Part 2 – Article 10 Finance, 
Contracts and Legal matters
Part 3 – Section D Scheme of 
Delegation to Officers 
Part 3 – Section G Budget and 
Policy Framework Standing Orders 
Part 3 – Section K Responsibilities 
for Financial Management 
Part 3 – Section L Financial 
Planning 
Part 3 – Section M Risk 
Management and Control of 
Resources  
Part 3 – Section N Financial 
Systems and Procedures 
 Part 3 – Section O External 
Procedures  
Part 3 – Section P Contract 
Procurement Rules  

the Constitution which deal with financial matters can be 
reduced whilst still complying with the Direction. We would 
advocate the removal of the appendices. 

Audit arrangements could be described in Part 1.

References to the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2003/2006/2011 need updating as having been repealed by 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

The Council is signed up to PSAA Ltd for the appointment of 
its external auditors and this could be reflected in the 
Financial Regulations (currently section M).

The Interim Head of Legal has delegated to her/him the 
institution defence and conduct of legal proceedings.
We would recommend wider delegation to the Monitoring 
Officer/ Head of Legal on the management, settlement, 
withdrawal and discontinuance of claims and legal 
proceedings.

y a description of the register of interests of members and 
co-opted members of the authority required under section 
81 of the Act [now s29 Localism Act 2011], together with 
the procedures for publicising, maintaining and updating 
that register.

Part 4 - Section A Code of Conduct 
for Members 

The register is referred to but there is no description or 
procedure for publicising, maintaining and updating it. 
Maintaining the register is not mentioned in the list of the 
Monitoring Officer's functions in Part 2- Article 9 
A web-link would be helpful to the Register perhaps linked to 
the Code/Arrangements for dealing with an alleged breach.

x a description of the rules and procedures for review and 
revision of the authority's constitution and executive 
arrangements or, as the case may be, alternative 
arrangements

Part 2 – Article 3
Part 2 – Article 12
Part 3 – Section D Scheme of 
Delegation to Officers 
Part 3 – Section E Council Standing 
Orders 

Article 12 refers to the Governance, Audit and Finance 
Committee making recommendations to Full Council on any 
changes not delegated to the MO (such changes necessary 
to reflect changes in the law/alterations in management 
structure in so far as these are consistent with Council policy) 
and subject to a report back to Governance, Audit and 
Finance Board. 

These powers should ensure that the Constitution can be 



 

10

Requirement of Direction Council's Constitution Comment

kept reasonably up to date without having to regularly take it 
all back to Full Council. We would recommend that the 
Monitoring Officer is given more power to update the 
constitution as required from time to time, to reflect:
a ) a minor variation; or
b) required in order to remove any inconsistency or 
ambiguity; or
c) required so as to give effect to any decision of the Council 
or one of its committees or sub-committees; or the Cabinet 
or one of its committees or sub-committees

2 OTHER LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

2.1 In addition to the requirements under the Direction, there are a number of other legislative requirements specifying content of local authority 
constitutions:

 Legislative Requirements Council's Constitution Comment

a Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 (SI 
2014/2095):

where a member of the public is entitled to attend a meeting of 
the Council, or of any of its Committees or Sub-Committees, 
Cabinet or a Committee of Cabinet, that person may also "report 
on the meeting", by which it means –

2.1.1 Filming, photographing or making an audio recording 
of the meeting;

2.1.2 Relaying that video or audio recording to enable 
others not present at the meeting to see or hear it at 
the same time as the meeting; and

2.1.3 Reporting or providing oral or written commentary on 
the meeting, so that others not present at the 

Part 3 – Section E Council 
Standing Orders SO 27 and 
Appendix 8 of Section L of Part 
3 of this Constitution

The public's rights to film and record meetings is 
captured. 

The protocol on recording, photography and use 
of social media at Council, Cabinet and other 
public meetings is included at Appendix 8 of 
Section L of Part 3 but could be hyperlinked from 
the Policy Hub rather than included in the 
constitution.

There is no mention in Part 2 – Article 2 of these 
rights nor in Part 3 – Section F Access to 
Information Standing Orders 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/2095/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/2095/contents/made


 

11

 Legislative Requirements Council's Constitution Comment

meeting may hear it at the same time as the meeting. 
However, authorities are given a discretion not to 
allow a person to make an oral report or commentary 
if he/she is actually present at the meeting 
(presumably to avoid disruption of the meeting). 

The Regulations place a duty on the authority to afford 
reasonable facilities for the person to so record and report the 
meeting.

b Local Government (Executive Arrangements) Meetings and Access to 
Information (England) Regulations 2012/2089:

 Regulation 5(1) – 5(5) of the 2012 regulations introduced the 
need for 28 days' clear notice of the intention to hold a meeting 
of a decision-making body in private, including a statement of 
the reasons for the meeting to be held in private, to appear on 
the authority's website and be available for public inspection at 
the local authority's office. A further 5 clear days before a private 
meeting, the decision-making body must make available at the 
offices of the relevant local authority a further notice of its 
intention to hold the meeting in private; and publish such notice 
on the website. 

 Where the date by which a meeting must be held makes 
compliance with these provisions impracticable, under 
regulation 5(6) the meeting may only be held in private where 
the decision-making body has obtained agreement from the 
Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee that the meeting is urgent 
and cannot reasonably be deferred.

 Regulation 9 of the 2012 regulations introduced the need for 28 
days' clear notice for the subject matter of executive and key 
decisions to appear on the authority's website and be available 
for public inspection at the local authority's office.

 Regulation 10(1) allows, that if it is impracticable for the Council 
to give the required 28 days' notice, the decision may still be 
made if the Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee has been given 
notice in writing of the matter about which the decision is to be 

Part 3 – Section F Access to 
Information Standing Orders 

We note that the Constitution does not provide for 
the rules on private meetings. These should be 
included. 

There is no clear definition of a ‘key decision’ with 
no reference to what constitutes significant 
expenditure or savings. We recommend this is 
reviewed. 



 

12

 Legislative Requirements Council's Constitution Comment

made, a copy of the notice is made available for inspection by 
the public and is published on the Council's website, and at least 
5 clear days have elapsed following the day on which the notice 
is made available for inspection by the public. 

 Exceptions and special urgency provisions

c Local Audit Panel arrangements required by the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014:

 The Audit Commission wound up in March 2015 and any 
references to the Audit Commission should be removed. 

 Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAAL) then took on 
the responsibility for making auditor appointments and setting 
audit fees until the current contracts with audit firms expire. 

 Local authorities must appoint an auditor for 2017/18 by 
December 2016 in accordance with Part 3 of the 2014 Act (and 
Schedule 3).

 Section 9 of the Act requires the Council to have an auditor 
panel to advise the authority on a) the maintenance of an 
independent relationship with the appointed local auditor, b) the 
selection and appointment of a local auditor, c) any proposal to 
enter into an agreement limiting the liability of its auditor(s) 
unless PSAAL is appointed. 

 The advice of an auditor panel must be published 

Part 2 – Article 5 Non Executive 
Functions (Governance, Audit 
and Finance Committee)  

The Terms of Reference for the Governance, 
Audit and Finance Committee should make it 
clear that it is Public Sector Audit Appointments 
Limited that appoints the Auditor.  
 
Also, please see below in respect of the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

d The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requirements: 

 The responsible financial officer must certify the presentation of 
the accounts

 The annual accounts (including the governance statement) 
must be published with the audit opinion and certificate, and 
before that must have been approved by members, by no later 
than 31st July. 

 The responsible financial officer must re-certify the presentation 
of the annual accounts before member approval is given. 

 The responsible financial officer must ensure that the period for 

Part 2 – Article 5 Non 
Executive Functions (Audit 
Committee)  
Part 3 – Section D Scheme of 
Delegation to Officers 
 
Part 3 – Section K Roles and 
Responsibilities in Financial 
Management 

The requirement for the responsible financial 
officer to certify the presentation of the accounts 
should be included in the Constitution.

We consider that the Financial Regulations 
require a general review and update to bring them 
into line with the requirements of the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2015.



 

13

 Legislative Requirements Council's Constitution Comment

the exercise of public rights includes the first 10 working days of 
July for reporting on financial years 2015/16 and 2016/17. 

 Public rights (which will include rights of objection, inspection 
and questioning of the external auditor) may only be exercised 
within a 30 day period. During this period all relevant documents 
must be available for public inspection.

 Documents relating to the published statement of accounts must 
remain available for public access for a period of not less than 
5 years.

 A narrative statement must be prepared to support the 
statement of accounts. 

e The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 as 
amended by The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England)  
(Amendment) Regulations 2015 require

 any allegation of misconduct against senior officers with 
statutory responsibilities (Head of Paid Service, Monitoring 
Officer and s151 Officer) to be considered by an Independent 
Persons Panel where a recommendation to Council is likely to 
be made to Council  for dismissal.

 the Panel to be a committee of the authority
 certain specific standing orders to be added to the Council's 

constitution.

Part 3 – Section K Officer 
Employment Standing Orders 

Joint Human Resources 
Committee ToR require 
updating

The role of Investigation and Disciplinary 
Committee in relation to Chief Officers should be 
a committee established under s102 of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

We would recommend that a Panel is drawn from 
the Joint Human Resources Committee of three 
members to include one member of the Cabinet 
to meet the requirements of the Chief Officers 
Terms and Conditions of Service and the 
Regulations.

We consider that there should also be a standing 
Panel of  Independent Persons referred to in the 
Standing Orders Regulations and the Terms and 
Conditions of Service appointed by the Council 
under s102(4) of the LGA 1972, and Terms of 
Reference should be included for an 
"Independent Persons Panel" to comply with the 
requirements of the legislation. It would be helpful 
for the Council to have more than one 
Independent Person (potentially 3) should a 
Panel of 2 need to be convened for these 
purposes (though individuals may be invited from 
neighbouring areas)



 

14

 Legislative Requirements Council's Constitution Comment

We believe the Independent Persons Panel may 
meet concurrently with the Panel where a 
statutory officer faces disciplinary allegations that 
could lead to dismissal, on a case by case basis.

We believe the mandatory standing orders should 
include reference to political assistant provisions, 
whether the Council has them or not and so they 
should be included.

f Statutory Guidance on the constitution of the Licensing Committee and 
sub-committees under s.182 Licensing Act 2003, with appropriate 
decisions delegated to Officers and appeals.

Part 2 - Article 5 – non-
Executive Functions 

The latest statutory guidance was issued in April 
2018. We assume that the updated guidance will 
be taken into account in any re-write of the 
Constitution.

We append a copy of the guidance at Appendix 1 
to this Checklist.



 

15

Appendix 1 - Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Revised Guidance issued
under section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003

April 2018



 

16

Administration, exercise and delegation of functions
14.68 The 2003 Act provides that the functions of the licensing authority (including its 

determinations) are to be taken or carried out by its licensing committee (except those 
relating to the making of a statement of licensing policy or where another of its committees 
has the matter referred to it). The licensing committee may delegate these functions to sub-
committees consisting of three members of the committee, or in appropriate cases to 
officials supporting the licensing authority. Where licensing functions are not automatically 
transferred to licensing committees, the functions must be carried out by the licensing 
authority as a whole and not by its executive. Statements of licensing policy should indicate 
how the licensing authority intends to approach its various functions. Many of the decisions 
and functions will be purely administrative in nature and statements of licensing policy 
should underline the principle of delegation in the interests of speed, efficiency and cost-
effectiveness.

14.69 The 2003 Act does not prevent the development by a licensing authority of collective 
working practices with other parts of the local authority or other licensing authorities for 
work of a purely administrative nature, e.g. mail-outs. In addition, such administrative tasks 
may be contracted out to private businesses. But any matters regarding licensing decisions 
must be carried out by the licensing committee, its sub-committees or officers.

14.70 Where, under the provisions of the 2003 Act, there are no relevant representations on an 
application for the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate or police 
objection to an application for a personal licence or to an activity taking place under the 
authority of a temporary event notice, these matters should be dealt with by officers in order 
to speed matters through the system. Licensing committees should receive regular reports 
on decisions made by officers so that they maintain an overview of the general situation. 
Although essentially a matter for licensing authorities to determine themselves, it is 
recommended that delegation should be approached in the following way:



 

17

120 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Table: Recommended Delegation of Functions
Matters to be dealt with Sub Committee Officers
Application for personal licence If a police objection If no objection made
Application for personal licence with unspent 
convictions

All cases

Application for premises licence/club premises 
certificate

If a relevant
representation made

If no relevant
representation made

Application for provisional statement If a relevant
representation made

If no relevant
representation made

Application to vary premises licence/club 
premises certificate

If a relevant
representation made

If no relevant
representation made

Application to vary designated premises 
supervisor

If a police objection All other cases

Request to be removed as designated 
premises supervisor

All cases

Application for transfer of premises licence If a police objection All other cases
Applications for interim authorities If a police objection All other cases
Application to review premises licence/club 
premises certificate

All cases

Decision on whether a representation is 
irrelevant frivolous vexatious etc

All cases

Decision to object when local authority is a 
consultee and not the relevant authority 
considering the application

All cases

Determination of an objection to a temporary 
event notice

All cases

Determination of application to vary premises 
licence at community premises to include 
alternative licence condition

If a police objection All other cases

Decision whether to consult other responsible 
authorities on minor variation application

All cases

Determination of minor variation application All cases





NON-EXEMPT  

 

                

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL  

 
FULL COUNCIL 13 NOVEMBER 2019 
 
APPOINTMENT OF THE S151 OFFICER 
 
Report Author: Head of Organisational 
Development 
 
REPORT OF:  Deputy Chair of the Joint Human 
Resource Committee of Havant Borough Council 
and East Hampshire District Council 

 

 
FOR DECISION  
 
 

 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 In line with the Council’s Standing Orders it is a requirement that the 

Council or its Joint Human Resources Committee make arrangements 
in connection with the permanent appointment of the S151 Officer. 
 

1.2 This paper is a mirror of the paper to each Council and recommends 
the appointment to the statutory post of S151 Officer. 

 
2.0 Recommendation  

 
2.1 The recommendations to full Council are to:  
 

a) Ratify the appointment of Lydia Morrison (Director – Corporate 
Services and Chief Finance Officer) to the statutory post of S151 
Officer.  

b) Link the post of Chief Finance Officer (S151) to the Director of 
Corporate Services post. 
 

3.0 Subject of Report 
  

3.1 An appointment process for the permanent appointment of the Director 
posts (x2) was undertaken by Joint Human Resources Committee in 
line with Officer Employment Standing Orders 93 & 94. This 
appointment process allowed for an internal selection first and enabled 
the interim Directors to be considered for the permanent posts.  
 

3.2 Following a review of all the evidence presented as part of this 
selection process, Joint Human Resources Committee recommended 
to Cabinet that Lydia Morrison be appointed to the Director of 



Corporate Services and Chief Finance Officer post including the 
statutory appointment as S151. For the purposes of this appointment, 
Joint Human Resources Committee recommended that the post of 
Chief Finance Officer (S151) be linked to the Director of Corporate 
Services post. Cabinet were afforded the right to make an objection to 
the Committee’s recommendation. Cabinet supported the 
recommendation.  On this basis, in line with the Council’s constitution, 
Joint Human Resources Committee have put forward the 
recommendations as outlined at 2.1.   

 
4.0 Implications  
 
4.1 Resources: The cost of the permanent post will be met within existing 

budgets. 
 
4.2 Legal: The process for the appointment of the S151 officer is set out in 

the Constitution at Officer Employment Standing Orders 93 & 94. 
   
4.3 Consultation:  With each Leader and Cabinet 
 
 
Agreed and signed off by: 
 
Deputy Finance Officer: 28.10.19 
Monitoring Officer: 28.10.19 
 
 
       
      
 
 
Contact Officer: Caroline Tickner 
Job Title:   Head of Organisational Development 
Telephone:  02392 446400 
E-Mail:  caroline.tickner@easthants.gov.uk 
 
 



Cabinet Lead Reports – Full Council 13 November 2019
Councillor Michael Wilson

Leader of the Council

Corporate Strategy

Work has continued on the development of the Corporate Strategy with a 
further Cabinet session held on 9 October. Officers are currently reviewing 
evidence and insight against identified priorities with further sessions planned 
over November to work up a draft document. In addition, Officers have begun 
submitting draft budget proposals that will support delivery of the Corporate 
Strategy. The Corporate Strategy will be taken through Council in February 
2020 alongside the budget and business plans.

Corporate Performance 

Cabinet members will provide reports on performance across their portfolios; 
however, I do wish to highlight a few items on overall corporate performance.

 Work has taken place on our Homelessness Review with a draft 
Strategy for Homelessness & Rough Sleepers now completed. An all 
Councillor Briefing was held on 4th November with respect to our 
Review and priorities have been identified for 2019-24.  The Strategy 
will come forward to Cabinet shortly for review and then onto Full 
Council.

 Operational performance continues to remain strong with all national 
planning application targets met. Performance data for quarter two is 
currently being collected and will be reported through Cabinet during 
late November and shared with Councillors via the Healthcheck.

 I’m pleased to report that the mobilisation of the new EHDC 
environmental services contract commenced on 30th September 2019.  
HBC are providing environmental services through Norse South East 
with a Delegation Agreement between EHDC and HBC. This has been 
a significant mobilisation for Norse South East and HBC and I’m 
pleased to report that the mobilisation took place as planned.

 Our Brexit team continued to work on preparing the Council in the 
event of a no-deal Brexit on 31st October. While those plans have now 
been stood down following the request and approval of a Brexit 
extension the Brexit team is in a position to ensure that should a no-
deal Brexit scenario arise in the future the Council is prepared to 
ensure that our services are maintained in the area and our businesses 
are prepared.  We have recently published our Brexit Position 
Statement on our website detailing work undertaken to-date.  Following 
the announcement of a General Election, scheduled for 12th 



December, the Elections team have been working on preparations to 
ensure a smooth election.

PUSH, HIOWLA & Solent LEP representative for HBC

I attended a meeting of the Hampshire & IOW LGA on Friday 27th September.   
Havant are hosting the next meeting on 29th November.  The main items on 
the agenda were :-

Vision for Hampshire 2050 - Members received a presentation from Cllr Roy 
Perry and Stuart Jarvis. 

Cllr Perry circulated the ‘Hampshire 2050, Vision for the Future, 
Commissioners’ Summary Report’ document and showed a short video about 
the process for drawing up the Vision.   A meeting, in Winchester, of the 
Hampshire 2050 Partnership is in the calendar to discuss Vision for 
Hampshire 2050. 

On Wednesday 2nd October I attended a Solent LEP Leaders Forum Working 
Dinner with the Chief Executive where the main item on the agenda was a 
discussion on the early draft of the Local Industrial Strategy.   The evening 
provided the opportunity to exchange views on the needs and future 
economic ambitions for the Solent.   During the dinner there was an 
opportunity to discuss themes around the Local Industrial Strategy, with a 
Leader on each table feeding back highlights.  

On Monday 14th October I attended a PfSH Joint Committee Meeting in 
Fareham.  Agenda items to note were :

PfSH Statement of Common Ground
Two key matters were discussed at this meeting. The first was the approval of 
the draft framework for the Statement of Common Ground. This will provide 
the basis for ongoing work to update the PUSH Spatial Position Statement, 
roll it forward into a Joint Strategy and bring it in line with the revised 
requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework. It will also include a 
higher-level visioning exercise, looking further towards 2050. The framework 
can sit alongside the bilateral statement of common ground that the Council 
has prepared with the Partnership’s authorities. 

Nutrient Neutrality 
The Joint Committee also received an update on nutrient neutrality. As a 
result of the update, the Partnership’s chairman has written to the relevant 
secretaries of state requesting that the transition period for the Housing 
Delivery Test is extended and a review of the consents of waste water 
treatment works takes place. I will also be writing to the Ministry as well to 
highlight the tangible impacts that this issue could have and specifically 
request a relaxation of the five year supply rules that would require the 
Council to consider planning applications with a ‘tilted balance’. This would 

https://www.push.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/ITEM-9-Statement-of-Common-Ground.pdf
https://www.push.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/ITEM-9-Statement-of-Common-Ground.pdf
https://www.push.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Item-6-Coordinators-Report.pdf


come into force if this issue goes on long enough that we do not have a five-
year supply. 





Cabinet Lead Reports – Full Council November 2019

Councillor Narinder Bains - Cabinet Lead for Neighbourhoods, Safety 
and Enforcement

Community Safety:

Neighbourhood Quality

Now that the summer has passed the teams’ attentions turn from the 
unprecedented number of unlawful incursions we experienced, to focusing on 
the quality of place in our town centres, fly tipping and delivering the 
Supporting Families programme. 

In addition, the team will also be delivering the annual Junior Citizen event at 
Fort Purbrook where key safety and crime prevention messages will be 
delivered to some 1400 junior school pupils from across the Borough. 

Tree Service

In spring 2019 Cllr Prad Bains brought forward an exciting proposal to create 
a Memorial Woodland to the fallen in Havant Borough to mark the centenary 
of the First World War. Councillors and Officers from the Tree Service working 
together and in partnership with Portsmouth Water have managed to secure a 
site for the Memorial Woodland at Havant Thicket where the new reservoir is 
to be developed. The woodland planting scheme will be located at the south 
west corner and consist of a mixture of tree species to include Oak, Sweet-
Chestnut, Field Maple and Hazel. This area will have its own identity on the 
site, and it is hoped that it will be marked with public art designs created by 
local community groups and workers that reflect the character of the woodland 
planting scheme. 

Planting has been scheduled to begin in December 2019.

Planning Enforcement 

There are currently some 80 open cases under investigation ranging from 
listed buildings to unauthorised advertising with many and varied reported 
issues in between. The team has recently come up to strength so that we now 
have two officers (one in training) working through this heavy workload. It is 
timely to remind people that there is an online reporting process which can be 
accessed through the Planning Portal.



Environmental Health

Private Sector Housing

The Empty Homes Strategy for the council has been drafted and is ready for 
review before being fully adopted. The Strategy formalises the excellent work 
already undertaken on the empty home workstream by teams across the 
council, and enhances our approach by providing clarity.

.



Cabinet Lead Reports – Full Council 13 November 2019

Councillor Lulu Bowerman: Cabinet Lead for People and 
Communications (including Legal and CAPITA)

Communications

Promotion of Hampshire sports conference: posters, social media campaign, 
press release and delegate packs 
 
Get Up and Go: continued promotion of activities via press releases, photos, 
video and social media. This campaign has reached more than 2,000 on 
Facebook and there have also been articles in the Hayling Herald and The 
News. 

Community Lottery: continued promotion of lottery wins and publicity about 
the additional prizes which are on offer. Promotion has been via press 
releases and social media. Campaign has reached more than 1,200 with each 
post on Facebook. Articles also appearing in local press. 

Promoting our approach to nitrate neutrality: the communications team has 
worked with the planning team to develop a feature article in Planning 
Magazine on our innovative approach to nutrient neutrality. 

Content developed for Remembrance Sunday: this work is for the 
Communities Team and will result in a new publication to highlight local 
contributions during periods of conflict 

Press releases: all council press releases can be found here 
https://www.havant.gov.uk/latest-news

Internal communications:  

Staff: continuing to communicate internally with staff via weekly Serving Us e-
newsletter. Readership is now up to 62% this is an increase of 20% from 
October last year. 

Councillors: continuing to communicate with councillors via fortnightly Serving 
Councillors e-newsletter. Readership is 58% compared to 59% from October 
last year. 
  
Website and social media 

www.havant.gov.uk
Website
 July – September 2019 July – September 2018

171,546 website visits last quarter 166,601 website visits quarter

https://www.havant.gov.uk/latest-news
http://www.havant.gov.uk/


435,132 website pages viewed last quarter 406,908 website pages 
viewed last quarter

When compared to the same period from last year (2018), the number of website 
visits has increased by 4,945 (3%) and the number of pages viewed has increased 
by 28,224 (6.9%).   

Where do users look at the website from? 
 The HBC website is mainly viewed from Havant (20%) and Portsmouth 
(17.4%). 

Most viewed service areas
Home page – 44,822

Page title Views Page title Views

1 Search and comment on 
planning applications

20,441 6 Planning applications and 
appeals

8,380

2 Contact us 17,042 7 Where I live (mapping tool) 7,553

3 Council Tax 16,874 8 Rubbish and recycling 7,276

4 Planning services 12,082 9 Pay your Council Tax 7,090

5 Bin collection 10,226 10 Park safe 6,772

Planning, bin collections and Council Tax were the most viewed services 
areas since the last report
Website improvements

 New section on the website about mental health
 New section on the website about Brexit
 Improved website usability using the Site Improve tool
 All website links are now underlined

There are on average 30 updates made to the website each day to ensure it is 
compliant, relevant and up to date.

Social media

July – September 2019
Total social media following:



 Facebook – 3,393 (+248)
 Instagram – 437 408 (+119)
 LinkedIn – 568 543 (+78)
 Twitter – 3,359 (+73)
 YouTube – 10 (+1)

Facebook
Top post – 12,622 people reached

“Havant Borough Council is demanding immediate action from Southern 
Water to ensure Hayling Island’s beaches are safe for all to use.”

Twitter
Top tweet – 4,062 people reached
“Have you been to @FrontLawnHFA's summer sport mash-up sessions yet? If 
not, why not?! This is a fantastic opportunity to learn new and enhance 
existing sporting skills!”

E-newsletters
July – September 2019
222 new subscribers so there are now 7,881 people signed-up to receive our 
e-newsletters.

Strategic Human Resources and Organisational Development 

There are a number of Strategic HR and OD projects which are in progress, to 
support the strategic aims of the council;
HR Advisory Service

The HR Advisory service returned in-house from Capita on 13 September 
2019.  The HR Business Partners are currently undertaking a recruitment and 
selection process and anticipate additional resources being in place by mid 
November 2019.  

The in-sourcing of HR Advisory services is supported by a review of HR 
policies to ensure managers are able to deal appropriately with low level/low 
risk employee issues, freeing HR resources for more complex and strategic 
employee issues.

Occupational Health

A new provider of Occupational Health services, Cordell Health, has been 
selected for the council through a procurement process.  The service is 
supported by an online referral system, enabling managers to create and track 
referrals for employees.  In-house HR advice will be provided to manage 
wellbeing and absence cases.



Employee Assistance Programme

An Employee Assistance Programme has been secured for the council 
through a procurement process.  Health Assured will provide a range of 
services including telephone and face to face counselling.  The EAP and 
Cordell Health will work in a collaborative way to support the council.

Learning and Development

Procurement of a provider of learning and development services is being 
finalised.  The successful bidder will be providing a comprehensive e-learning 
suite of courses to ensure the council meets mandatory training obligations, 
as well as a full Learning Management System which will enable employees 
to source, book and track learning events.  The LMS will also provide the 
council will data in relation to learning and development to inform future 
decision-making.  

The learning and development offer will also include Councillor development 
and support.

A Learning and Development Strategy, supported by a Learning and 
Development Policy, will ensure the council has clear direction in relation to 
learning activity and development of employees.  The Strategy and Policy 
have been approved by Joint Human Resources Committee.

Employee Engagement

An in-house event was organised for all line managers which focused around 
employee engagement.  The event took place on 16 October 2019.  The aim 
of the event was to raise awareness and understanding of employee 
engagement, how line managers influence engagement of their teams and 
strategies for improving engagement.  The event supported the creation of an 
Employee Engagement Strategy.  The council will also create a public case 
study from the experiences of raising and embedding employee engagement 
practices.

Recruitment and Selection

Effective recruitment and selection remains a focus of Strategic HR and OD 
work to ensure the council attracts and recruits the right people into the right 
jobs with the right behaviours to support the council strategy.  A Recruitment 
Strategy will be developed in the coming months to ensure clear guidelines 
and practices are in place for recruiting managers.

The corporate induction for new employees has been successfully revised to 
ensure an interactive and engagement session is provided for new 
employees.  The current format will be extended to cover all essential 
governance matters in the New Year.



Pay and Reward

There is on-going work to support the Capita payroll and pensions 
administration service and complete the necessary returns for the Hampshire 
LGPS office.

Capita are now implementing the agreed changes to the payroll in line with 
the 2019-20 pay award and it is anticipated that this can be applied in 
November pay and any backdated pay due to staff included.

Business Continuity (BCP)

A recent audit of BC plans, identified a number were out of date and work has 
been progressing to ensure that this issue was addressed. All teams were 
asked to review their plans and update and this has been progressing well. 

Each team were also provided with an exercise template to test the content of 
their plan and to ensure they were robust. Completed exercises are currently 
being reviewed.

Democratic Services

Independent Remuneration Panel for councillor allowances – the data from 
the questionnaire sent to all Councillors has been collated and forwarded to 
the panel to inform their deliberations. The panel will soon be arranging 
interviews with councillors to further inform the recommendations of their 
report, which will be considered by Council in early 2020.

Upcoming workshops – There are a number of area specific CIL 
Neighbourhood Portion Workshops being held in the coming weeks, which 
councillors are encouraged to attend.

Scrutiny – 
The Operations and Place Shaping Board’s Report on Parking Issues in the 
Borough was considered by Cabinet on 23 October and the recommendations 
were approved. The Board undertook a Challenge Session on the subject of 
Nutrient Neutrality on 28 October with representatives from Natural England 
and the Environment Agency present.  Future items for scrutiny by this board 
include the Homelessness Strategy and Southern Water.

The Business and Commercial Services Scrutiny Board’s draft report on litter 
is being finalised and Challenge Sessions will be held on the bulky waste 
collection service and the Norse Annual Statement.

The Governance, Audit and Finance Board’s report on councillor allowances 
has been drafted and upcoming topics include a Challenge Session on 
Revenues and Benefits and scrutinising the draft 2020/21 Budget.



Elections 

Due to the announcement on 29 October that a General Election is now taking 
place on Thursday 12 December, the Election services team are now booking 
rooms and halls and recruiting staff for polling stations and the count etc. 
Additional support will come from other members of Brian Wood’s service 
area if required

Annual Canvass –it is now coming towards the end of the door knocking stage 
of the canvass, with one more weekend to go. So far 9 of the 37 canvassers 
have completed the work and others are well on the way. 

To date (24/10/19) there have a total of 46542 responses (83.7%) out of 
55552 properties canvassed. We still have 9002 outstanding (16.3%).

Digital

Along with over 150 local authorities, we have signed up to the Local Digital 
Declaration. This is a commitment to collaborate across Councils on digital 
initiatives on the basis that we share common challenges in designing digital 
solutions and have ideas and resources which will have a greater impact if 
they are taken forward collectively.
More information can be found here: https://localdigital.gov.uk/declaration/

In parallel, the Digital Strategy for the Council is under development and will 
be considered by Cabinet in December and Full Council in January 2020. The 
workplan underpinning the delivery of the strategy will focus on The Way we 
Work, The Way we Deliver and The Way we Engage seeing activity across 
the following themes:

 Personalised services
 Secure and trusted solutions
 Using data to inform design and service provision
 Integrated and inter-operable systems to improve productivity
 Solutions which enhance regeneration plans in our area
 Collaboration

As we become more digital, it is increasingly important that we are cyber-
aware to reduce the risk of data loss and data breaches. All Councillors have 
access to e-Learning, named Dojo, which takes you through the important 
considerations of data security and GDPR.
Take-up has so afar been low and so I urge everyone to work through it to 
understand more about cyber threats and what you can do to protect yourself 
– and the Council – from attack.
On the subject of GDPR, Officers are in the process of organising some 
training and awareness for all Councillors which will be delivered in the 
coming months.

https://localdigital.gov.uk/declaration/
https://localdigital.gov.uk/declaration/


Revenue and Benefits

Customer Portal – this was launched in January 2018 to enable our 
customers to access their information on-line. 
To date, nearly 4,500 customers have created an account – and in 
September, more than 1,200 customers used the portal.
A link to the log on / register page is below

https://revenuesbenefits.havant.gov.uk/publicaccesslive/selfservice/dashboard
.htm

Council Tax – Premium on Long Term Voids (LTV) – the Council has 
additional discretion to look how we charge LTV’s. A report will be going to 
Cabinet to look at increasing the premium to encourage owners to bring their 
dwellings back into use. This will link in with the new Empty Property Strategy 
which our Private Sector Housing team will be bringing forward.

Street Name and Numbering (SNN)

Our SNN Service is run by EHDC and the current arrangements end in April 
next year. We will be bringing forward a report to look at continuing this 
arrangement. 
The Communications Team will soon be running a Social Media campaign to 
raise the awareness of the SNN service and how the public can request a 
House Name change for the cost of around £100. This could tap into a useful 
income stream, so we will be testing the public’s interest in this service.

Garden Waste Renewals 2020 – the first project meeting has been held to 
ensure that letters are sent in January 2020 for renewal in April 2020 – this 
year was a great success with over 1,000 new customers, bringing the total 
up to 11,500.

Customer Services

“Purple Tuesday”  will take place on 12th November. It is a national event  
which the Council will getting involved with for the first time

This is a day to promote customer service for people with disabilities and 
make at least one commitment. 

As this is our first year of being involved, I am proposing two commitments:

 To carry out digital access audits on our web experiences
 Customer service training (disability awareness). 

Our Customer Inclusion Adviser, Caren Ransom will be leading this initiative

A Link to the website is below where there is information about the day and 
downloads

https://revenuesbenefits.havant.gov.uk/publicaccesslive/selfservice/dashboard.htm
https://revenuesbenefits.havant.gov.uk/publicaccesslive/selfservice/dashboard.htm


https://purpletuesday.org.uk/

Customer insight

Insight’s recent focus has been to collect data to help shape Havant Borough 
Council's strategy for 2020/2021. They have collected data on numerous 
areas including Employment, Crime and health and well being. Data is 
currently being presented to the Executive Board to help influence the shape 
and form of the corporate strategy.

The Residents Panel has now been up and running for a year. We currently 
have 248 residents who regularly answer quick online surveys about a variety 
of local issues. The aim of the panel is not to replace traditional methods but 
to compliment them and ideally gather views from different people across the 
borough. One lucky panellist has won the prize draw of £150 in gift vouchers 
just in time for Christmas. Insight plan to build on the success they have had 
this year and continue this panel into the following year.

Insight continues to support other Havant Borough Council services.  Current 
live surveys are:  an evaluation survey monitoring the Get up & Go 
programme aimed at encouraging the over 55's to take up a more active 
lifestyle; a Pre Application survey for the planning team aimed at 
understanding how our customers of this service would like us to deliver our 
Pre App service

Legal

In July this year Full Council approved a review of the constitution to be 
overseen jointly with East Hampshire via a sub committee of full council. The 
subcommittee is made up of 4 cross party members from HBC and the same 
from EHDC. The subcommittee’s first meeting was on 14 October and the 
Committee approved the approach to be taken for re-drafting the constitution. 
The monitoring officer and head of legal services, David Brown has been 
leading on this review which will create a new bespoke Constitution that is 
uniquely designed to meet the needs of Havant Borough Council. A report will 
be given at Full Council on 13 November

Legal Services are also pleased to welcome two new team members who will 
be starting in November. A new legal assistant to ensure the team maintains 
the correct level of support moving forward and new trainee solicitor to 
continue our tradition of providing a high quality route to qualification. Legal 
Services are also looking at creating an apprenticeship scheme to allow an 
alternative way of becoming a solicitor suitable for someone who may not be 
able to commit to a full time degree course.

https://purpletuesday.org.uk/
https://purpletuesday.org.uk/


CAPITA

A meeting with all 5 Councils in the Capita contract in attendance was held on 
Monday 28 October at the Plaza with CEO’s and councillors to discuss the 2 
year review that is currently taking place. The meeting provided opportunities 
for open discussions to all attendees with objectives discussed and agreed for 
the next meeting on 6 January 2020.  There will be a presentation to all 
members of the findings of the 2 year review and this will take place later in 
November.





Cabinet Lead Reports – Full Council 13 November 2019

Councillor Gary Hughes 

Cabinet Lead for County Council Liaison and Commercial Services

Environmental Services 

Norse South East began delivering East Hampshire District Council’s 
Environmental Services on the 30th September. The mobilisation of the 
service has gone well, with 98.5% of refuse bins being collected on schedule. 
The mobilisation has been well managed and has not impacted on Havant 
Borough Council’s service. At a Delegated User Group meeting with the 
Leader and Deputy Leader of EHDC held on 24th Oct, both expressed total 
satisfaction with roll-out of the new service, improving performance week-on-
week as new crews become more proficient.  

The volume of preventative maintenance work undertaken by the Fleet 
Management team has almost doubled now that we have taken on the service 
delivery of Waste, Grounds, Streets and Public Toilets with East Hampshire.

At Beachlands, there has been a full team operating on beach patrol and litter 
picking. From November through to March, there will be a reduction in the 
number of staff on this work to reflect the seasonal nature of service demand.

The ecological (birds, reptile and fauna) surveys undertaken on Hayling SSSI 
site throughout the summer have been delivered.  The results have been 
analysed and discussions undertaken with Natural England in respect to the 
scope of any adjustments to existing footprints of beach huts, regeneration 
and coastal erosion.  A communication is being drafted to the owners of the 
beach huts that were moved from ‘A’ site temporarily located updating them 
on the situation.  A separate letter is also being prepared for ‘B’ site (west of 
the Inn on the beach) owners and tenants setting out the situation in respect 
to the observed rate of coastal erosion at that location and the impact on the 
aged beach defences. 

The street cleaning team will imminently commence a 4 – 6 week programme 
of clearing leaf fall. This work is scheduled to focus on areas of high 
pedestrian activity.

Information on changes to Christmas and New Year waste collection dates 
was included in the last edition of “Serving You.”

We currently have 11,709 customers for our garden waste service, of which 
there are 1,664 new customers; this compares to 10,423 in 2018/19.

A new Operations Director, Robert Guy, is expected to join NORSE on 4th 
November 2019. 





Cabinet Lead Reports – Full Council 13 November 2019

Councillor Leah Turner: Cabinet Lead for Finance and Coastal Communities

Strategic Review of Medium-Term Financial Strategy Long Term 
Sustainable Financial Strategy 

We have begun the budget setting process for 2020/2021. We are also just 
completing the half- year finance report.

Coastal Communities South Hayling Beach Management Activities 
(2017-2022) 

Following the beach recycling campaign in April 2019, ESCP has been 
working with the Maritime Marine Organisation to extend potential working 
dates for any future dredging campaigns. Permission for this was gained 
during August 2019, allowing potential future dredging to take place between 
September and May, as required. Works commenced on 21st October 2019 
to carry out a dredge of the Chichester Harbour Maintenance Channel. Works 
are expected to take 14 days in total, although this is subject to change 
depending on weather conditions during the contract. Following sediment 
sampling of the Harbour Bar, it is expected that up to 30,000m3 shingle will be 
dredged and deposited on the beach at Eastoke, to provide protection to 1800 
homes at flood risk. This will then be re-profiled by land-based machinery to 
build the beach up to design volume and profile. The land-based works are 
expected to last 10 working days on site, with a one week overlap with the 
dredging. These works will be funded through Grant in Aid from the 
Environment Agency. We will provide further updates to councillors, residents 
and businesses as the works progress.

Broadmarsh Coastal Park Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management 
(FCERM) Feasibility Study 

Work has commenced on a new feasibility study for Broadmarsh, to 
understand the complex issues affecting these aging sea defences, 
constraints and risks at the site, groundwater processes, overtopping and 
environmental importance. It will also consider a shortlist of coastal defence 
options and then develop the most appropriate option to outline design stage. 
The ground investigation contract was awarded to Geotechnics Ltd., and 
works commenced on 21st October 2019, with 5 boreholes to be carried out 
along the bank top and inland of the coastal defences, together with a number 
of trial excavation pits on the foreshore. The aim of the ground investigation is 
to understand the construction of the existing coastal defences, and to identify 
any groundwater flow through the defence. Black and Veatch were awarded 
the option appraisal study contract and the project start-up meeting was held 
at the start of October. The option appraisal study is now underway, with 
further updates to be provided once works have progressed. Funding of 
£73,000 has been sourced through Local Levy via The Environmental Agency 



Regional Flood & Coastal Committee with a contribution from HBC. The 
project is due for completion by the end of Summer 2020.

Hayling Island Funding and Implementation Strategy 

The Hayling Island Funding and Implementation Strategy (HIFIS), is the first 
part of a full Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management (FCERM) Strategy 
for the island. HIFIS is nearing its end with all tasks completed. Our 
consultants AECOM have completed an assessment of the condition of 
defences around the whole island, undertaken flood modelling, identified 
option development units, completed an initial economic assessment, and a 
Gross Value Added (GVA) and economic footprint assessment for Hayling 
Island. ESCP tasks have included a landfill desktop study and a broader 
outcomes and funding strategy for the island. HIFIS is now complete, and the 
recommendations justify the need for a full FCERM Strategy. The ESCP have 
secured HBC Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to progress this work to a 
full Strategy for Hayling Island. We will however, also apply to Regional Flood 
and Coastal Committee (RFCC) Local Levy and Government Grant in Aid 
(GiA) for additional funding. The project will be on hold for approximately four 
months from September to make these funding applications. Work on the full 
FCERM Strategy is expected to start in January 2020.

Langstone Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management (FCERM) 
Scheme – Outline design 

The Langstone Scheme is currently at outline design stage, following two 
months of targeted engagement with the local community. Dialogue is 
continuing with the two local pubs, the sailing club and utility companies in 
relation to potential partnership founding. During the summer AECOM have 
been developing the outline designs for the scheme before we share these 
with the wider community at the end of November. During engagement, a 
perceived alternative option was put forward by a local resident involving the 
creation of an offshore breakwater and flood gates on the eastern side of the 
village. The project team agreed to revisit the option and undertake further 
assessment to assess its viability. The assessment concluded that due to 
significant technical, social, environmental and cost issues associated with 
progressing this option the project team will not progress this option any 
further. The team have secured HBC CIL to progress the detailed design 
stage early next year, before developing a business case to apply for 
additional Government GiA funding.

Routine Maintenance Works: Broadmarsh Revetment, Langstone 
Harbour and HBC Plot 74 Compound Eastoke.

Broadmarsh Revetment Repairs

The last set of maintenance works at Broadmarsh were carried out in 2017, 
when three areas of failing revetment were replaced with rock armouring to 



stabilise the structure and provide coastal protection to the landfill behind. 
This has worked well, however some new areas of damage have emerged. 
Small scale repairs are scheduled for late October 2019. The works are 
expected to take one week and will be carried out immediately following the 
ground investigation works (mentioned above), to reduce the impact of any 
works on the public.

Timber Maintenance 2019/20, Hayling Island 

We are currently undertaking a condition assessment of timber coastal 
protection assets to ascertain the scale of maintenance works required to 
keep the timber structures in serviceable condition. These works are 
programmed for early 2020 and will include repairs to the Coastguard 
revetment, which currently has a temporary repair carried out earlier in year.

Plot 74 Compound Maintenance, Hayling Island 

NORSE SE Ltd have commenced clearance of vegetation as well as the 
disposal of detritus, however works are currently on hold until the Hayling 
BMA operations are completed by early November. Further improvement 
works are to include fencing and access gates together with the installation of 
a security system (CCTV etc).

Conigar Point, Chichester Harbour 

Based on a ‘Do Minimal’ scenario around this frontage in line with the 
Portchester to Emsworth Strategy. Patch repairs to structure as required. 
Works to be scheduled for March 2020.

Coast Protection Asset Inspections – Havant 

We have now adopted new technology into our asset inspections. Instead of 
using the Trimble handsets and having to download the data in the office, we 
can now input asset inspection data on our smartphones which link directly to 
our server within GIS. This has made inspections a lot more efficient and 
easier to capture data/photos. Early in the year we were joined by AECOM 
consultants for the Hayling Island Funding and Implementation Strategy 
(HIFIS), to carry out a condition assessment of all coastal defence structures 
around the coastal frontage of Hayling. This was very useful as we were able 
to visually inspect a number of privately-owned defences, which we haven’t 
previously had permission to do.

ESCP Geomatics Division 

Phase 2 of the 2019/20 Regional Monitoring survey programme is complete, 
including the beach frontages at South Hayling. Following the launch of the 
“Geomatics Division” a range of non-coastal survey services have been 
delivered to local authority teams in Havant, East Hants, Fareham, Gosport, 
Hampshire CC and Portsmouth, totalling 31 separate commissions. The future 



workload looks positive for Q3 and Q4. The team secured a commercial 
license to operate both their fixed wing and quadcopter UAV’s in September 
and have three full pilots, with a further 3 in training. Installation of GPS base 
station at Plaza is completed, testing and commissioning is ongoing.

Regional Habitat Creation Programme (RHCP) 

The RHCP is legally required to deliver habitat creation across the region, to 
replace habitats lost through Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management 
(FCERM). The RHCP is administered by the Environment Agency (EA), 
however limited progress had been made since 2011 other than the delivery 
of the Medmerry Managed Realignment scheme between Selsey and 
Bracklesham, West Sussex. With many opportunities for habitat creation 
within the Havant Borough (and wider ESCP area), it has been critical for us 
to inform and progress this programme. Future FCERM schemes to protect 
people and property rely on the successful provision of compensatory habitat. 
Phase 1 of the project, the Strategic Update, has now been completed and 
confirms the quantity of habitat creation required in this area to meet our legal 
obligations. The findings of the Strategic Update were shared with local 
authority planning officers and other relevant stakeholders via a workshop on 
1 November 2018. Work continues with Phase 2, the Tactical Stage, and is 
now well progressed with us currently drafting the 2018 Annual Review report. 
We have investigated 18 priority sites (five of which are within the Havant 
Borough) for their feasibility for intertidal habitat creation. Jointly with the EA 
we have produced a habitat creation delivery plan that will ensure we meet 
our RHCP targets up to the end of the second epoch of the Shoreline 
Management Plan (i.e. 2055). Ten potential habitat creation sites have been 
added to the EA’s Medium-Term Plan, which is the first step in securing 
FDGiA funding to start investigating the viability of these schemes. Over the 
coming years, we will be looking at these sites in detail to confirm and plan the 
habitat creation opportunities.

Solent Bird Studies 

The Solent Birds Studies is a 3-year study of the way over-wintering bird 
populations use coastal areas, with a particular focus on taking forward future 
FCERM and habitat creation projects. We are currently finalising some minor 
amendments that have been suggested by the Solent Waders and Brent 
Goose Strategy working group and will submit the report for formal approval 
by Natural England and Environment Agency once these have been made. A 
meeting will shortly be held the Solent Waders and Brent Goose Strategy 
working group to discuss the algorithms used for the Solent Birds model and 
possible adoption by this project. The data can also be of use within the 
planning system for assessing site allocations, applications and planning any 
required mitigation in relation to Brent geese and other over-wintering SPA 
bird species.



Mayoralty By the time of this Council meeting we will have had the 
period of Remembrancetide 

The Mayor’s office co ordinates the activities throughout the Borough that lead 
up to Remembrance Sunday including Armistice Day. Meetings are held with 
the RBL, police, army and HBC officers. Ensuring that this period of 
Remembrance so important to residents is fully commemorated. Meetings and 
arrangements regarding Holocaust Memorial Day on 27/1/20 have also 
started. We invite representatives from all the Secondary Schools in the 
Borough. Inviting them to take part in our Non Denominational service. Next 
year is special in that it commemorates both the 75th anniversary of the 
liberation of Auschwitz and 25 years since the Genocide in Bosnia.





Cabinet Lead Reports – Full Council 13 November 2019

Councillor Tim Pike: Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Lead for 
Planning, Regeneration and Communities

Regeneration

The OJEU procurement process to secure a viable development partner on 
the Civic Plaza car park site is progressing with two developers making a final 
submission. Each of the proposals are being evaluated; if the proposals meet 
the evaluation criteria then a preferred bidder will be identified through the 
process and then detailed negotiations could begin in whether a final deal can 
be achieved.

Brockhampton West is being marketed for a straight sale with a fallback 
position being considered for income generation as a solar farm or goose 
mitigation land.

Good progress on Hayling seafront with detailed work on the Nab car park site 
with an outline planning application due to be submitted early in the new year. 
Mace consultants are working on proposals for regeneration investment along 
the seafront with a focus on enhancing the commercial offer at West Beach.

Officers attended MIPIM UK, a national property investment conference in 
mid-October and whilst investment is slowing down over wider uncertainties 
there is still finance looking for a safe long term home, some of which will 
head out of the seemingly saturated London market. This could be an 
opportunity for the promotion of Havant once we have some certainty over our 
town centre position. 

Housing

On the 4th November 2019, there was a Cllr briefing on the Homelessness 
Review and the priorities identified for the future Homelessness & Rough 
Sleeping Strategy and Action Plan. The briefing highlighted how the Council 
has responded to the Homelessness Act 2017 and the new duties, figures 
over the past five years and how we intend to address certain issues and 
provide information on the development of affordable housing in the borough.  
A copy of the Homelessness Review has been sent to all Councillors for 
information but if you are unable to attend the briefing or have any queries 
please do not hesitate to contact Tracey Wood, Head of Housing & 
Community Engagement.
 
Sport and Leisure

A New Direction – Physical Activity Initiative This project, funded by Public 
Health Hampshire and working in partnership with Horizon Leisure, has now 
started.



The 12-week programme has a total of 35 inactive females aged 35-54, 
providing a programme of specific sessions across both Havant and 
Waterlooville Leisure Centre sites to improve physical activity and health 
outcomes.

A further two sets of sessions will be running in 2020 following significant 
demand for the programme.

Community Infrastructure Levy 

Officers have supported a total of 7 Neighbourhood CIL applications in 
relation to play, sport and leisure. Should these projects move forward they 
will work towards realising the recommendations in the Open Space, Sport & 
Recreation Strategy.

Hampshire Sports Conference 

Officers delivered the Hampshire Sports Conference on 2nd October at the 
Plaza. The event focussed on ‘Thinking and Delivering Differently’ and saw 
approximately 85 sports clubs, coaches, instructors and leisure providers 
benefit from a variety of workshops. The event was hosted by former 
Olympian Gail Emms MBE and provided information on how to engage with 
inactive audiences and engage new markets.

The conference was delivered in partnership with the University of Chichester 
and Energise Me.

Economic Development

Brexit Business Survey - we have recently undertaken a survey of local 
businesses to understand the likely impact of Brexit and levels of preparation 
among our small business community. Over 50 businesses in the Borough 
responded identifying key issues such as logistics, rising tariffs along with staff 
and visas. The results of the survey have been shared at a national and local 
level with organisations including Solent LEP, Chamber of Commerce and the 
Federation of Small Business. We will continue to work with these 
organisations to ensure our business community receive the necessary advice 
and support as we leave the EU. 

Google Digital Garage - As part of Google's digital out-reach programme, the 
Google Digital Garage is coming to Havant town centre on Friday 8 November 
(10am-4pm). A schedule of courses will be delivered through Google's mobile 
facility focusing on CV writing, digital marketing and keeping safe on line. A 
series of drop in sessions are also available for local residents and 
businesses. This has been co-ordinated by the Economic Development team 
in liaison with Google and Alan Mak's office. 



Community Development, Health and Wellbeing

New Developments 

Waterlooville Berewood site.  Work is ongoing to support the Newlands Parish 
Council to ensure the opening of the new temporary community building on 
site. The lease has been signed for the building and whilst the building is 
situated just outside of the borough within the Winchester boundary, it will 
provide a much-needed facility for residents until the permanent building is 
built as part of the latter stages of the development. Our Community Officer 
will be working at the building for an interim period and working in partnership 
with the Waterlooville Area Community Association regarding the bookings.

Funding has been secured from the developer, Grainger, to address Anti-
Social Behaviour issues.  Y Services are being commissioned to work closely 
with the Police and council staff to establish what the issues are on site and 
how best to tackle them.

Health & Wellbeing  

A number of meetings have taken place over recent months to discuss the re-
establishment of a Health and Wellbeing Partnership. Until now, some matters 
relating to health and wellbeing have been discussed at the Havant Locality 
Board, however the scope of this Board is very wide and there is a sense that 
many health priorities cannot be considered in enough detail.

Recent developments and changes within partner organisations have 
provided the timely opportunity to review the current structure. This includes 
the formation of Primary Care Networks and the appointment of Social 
Prescribers, and the launch a local Teenage Health & Wellbeing Board. 
Conversations with colleagues from various key agencies, including the GPs 
from the Networks and from the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), identify 
significant benefits for a Partnership focussing on Health and Wellbeing for 
the Borough, and there has been very strong support and commitment for a 
separate forum to identify priorities and discuss issues in more detail.

It is anticipated that an Action Plan will resonate from this group which aims to 
create some Prevention and Healthy Lifestyle opportunities.

Dementia  

Monthly Dementia awareness sessions continue at the Plaza.  Since 
November 2018, 120 people have attended the awareness sessions, these 
include Councillors, Officers, community groups and charities.

The Councillor Dementia awareness session in September was attended by 
three Councillors bringing the total to date to nine.  If any Councillors are 
interested in attending they should contact a member of the Community 
Team.



Havant Lottery  

For every ticket brought before Saturday 2 November there will be an 
opportunity to win extra prizes. Five entertainment bundles are up for grabs 
containing an Amazon Echo, Amazon Echo Dot, Amazon Tablet (Fire HD8) 
and an Amazon Fire TV Stick. There are 5 bundles available.

A winter prize draw takes place on Saturday 14th December, sign up for a 
chance to win an overnight stay for 2 people (double room), bed and breakfast 
(worth £225) at the Village Hotel in Portsmouth and four tickets to the 
Christmas Show, Otto and the Robin at The Spring in Havant.

Havant Community Lottery drop in sessions take place on 5th November and 
Tuesday 3rd December at the Plaza. This is an opportunity for existing Good 
Causes to seek advice and potential new groups to ask questions and 
become a new Good Cause.

Additional funding was awarded to 10 Good Causes in November totalling 
£9,100 via the Havant Lottery Central Funding Scheme including Homestart, 
Bedhampton Community Centre, Havant Talking Newspaper, Waterlooville 
Bowling Club and Heart of Hayling Boxing Club. 

Armed Forces  

Havant Remembers – a commemorative booklet has been produced. The 
booklet includes a map highlighting silhouettes installed across the borough to 
remember the fallen. 

Events 

Applications have been received for the following 2020 events:

March - Sinah Battery Car Show / Charity event - Hayling

May - Kids party in the Park – Havant 
          Cricket for Heroes - Emsworth
          Tennis Tournament - Emsworth
           
June - Circus Zyair
           Kite Surfing – Hayling 
             Havant Rugby Fun Day

July - Colour Run - St James Primary School
          Family Fun Day - Havant
           Park Fest 2020 - Havant


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Mayor's Report
	8 Note the approach and Timetable for the Constitutional Review
	Appendix 3 Draft Constitution checklist - Havant - c

	9 Appointment of the S151 Officer
	10 Leader's Report
	11 Cabinet Lead Reports
	Cabinet Lead Report - Bowerman - November 2019
	Cabinet Lead Report - Hughes Nov 19
	Cllr Turner Cabinet Lead Report - (Nov 19)
	Cabinet Lead Report Nov 19 - Pike


